
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, MARCH 21, 2022 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS
a. 309 Walnut Street Sewer Issue (Zachary E. Lilly)
b. NCLM Voting Delegate (City Manager)
c. Utility Rates (City Manager)
d. NPO Support (City Manager)
e. GWTA Board Discussion (Mayor)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater, Tehillah Church Ministries)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A.1   Minutes of the Council Retreat of February 21-22, 2022
A.2   Minutes of the Joint Meeting of March 1, 2022

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution in Support and Honor of the People of Ukraine and the Men and Women Assigned to 

Seymour Johnson Air Force Base   
C. Eagle Scout Jonah Williams Recognition (Mayor, Councilmember Aycock) 
D. Goldsboro Redistricting Maps (Poyner-Spruill)  

VI. PUBLIC HEARING
E. Z-1-22 Angelita Morrisroe – East of N. William Street between Wilson St. and E. US 70 Hwy. service

road and within the corporate City limits (Planning) 
F. Z-2-22 Eastern Hill, Inc. – South side of E. Elm Street between Crawford St. and Beale St. and within the

corporate City limits (Planning) 
G. Z-3-22 RBV Investments, LLC. – North side of E. US 70 Hwy. between Corbett St. and N. Oak Forest Dr.

and located in the corporate City limits (Planning) 
H. Z-4-22 KRP Investments, LLC. – East side of Wayne Memorial Dr. between Fourth St. and Gracie Pl. and

located in the corporate City limits (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
I. Location of the 135th USCT Civil War Trail Marker (Travel & Tourism)
J. Supply Agreement between Sonoco Recycling LLC and the City of Goldsboro (COG) (Public Works)
K. Ratifying the Actions Taken Regarding Water Tank Communications Colocation Lease Agreements and

Approving Amendment to T-Mobile Lease (City Manager) 
L. Advisory Board and Commission Appointments (Deputy City Clerk)



2 

M. Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina (Deputy City Clerk) 
N. Departmental Monthly Reports – January and February  

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION
O. Proposal to Provide Economic Incentives to the Mount Olive Pickle Company (Mark Pope, WCDA)

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
P. Resolution Expressing Appreciation For Services Rendered By Linwood (Worth) Smith As An

Employee Of The City Of Goldsboro For More Than 19 Years  
Q. Resolution Expressing Appreciation For Services Rendered By Dwight Tyndall As An Employee Of The 

City Of Goldsboro For More Than 7 Years  
R. Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN



Hello all! 

The nomination period for the 2022-2023 Board of Directors is now open and will run 
through March 31. Once again, we will hold an electronic voting process for board elections. 

During CityVision, held April 26-28 in Wilmington, League members will attend the annual 
business meeting where the 2022-2023 electronic Board of Directors election results will be 
announced. 

You are receiving this because each member municipality shall designate one voting 
delegate who is eligible to cast a single vote for the 2022-2023 League Board of Directors 
in advance of the annual business meeting. 

Please complete the Voting Delegate form to identify your municipality's voting delegate to 
ensure delivery of electronic ballot and voting instructions by April 15, 2022. 

DESIGNATE YOUR VOTING DELEGATE HERE

Electronic Voting Timeline: 

 The designated voting delegate shall receive their credentials and voting
instructions on or before April 15, 2021.

 The appointed voting delegate shall vote on the slate of candidates via electronic
means between  April 15 - April 20, 2022.

 The election results shall be presented to the membership at CityVision 2022, April
28, 2022 at the NCLM Annual Business Meeting during the CityVision
conference.

If you have any questions or need assistance, please feel free to contact me at  

kwaddell@nclm.org | (919) 715-0950 



Public Utility Rates  
Tim Salmon, City Manager

March 21st, 2022



2

• Current water and sewer rates are not sufficient to meet the needs of the utility 
systems

• Rate increases will be required in the coming years 

• Level of capital investment in water and sewer systems is the significant driver for 
rate increases

• Even with increases water and sewer rates will result in utility bills that are within 
the average utility bills in surrounding communities in North Carolina 

Summary Stantec Findings and Recommendations Dec 6, 2021



Type of Project ($ Million)* FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 Total

Engineering $4.79 $11.58 $1.34 $3.37 $7.21 $0.11 $3.14 $ 0.88 $32.42

Water Treatment Plant 1.29 2.54 5.39 0.35 0.31 95.00 0.22 0.87 105.1

Water Reclamation Facility 2.74 3.58 65.00 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.69 1.09 73.67

Compost Facility 0.40 0.50 0.60 0.20 0.37 0.20 0.41 0.62 3.30

Vehicles & Equipment 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 3.60

Total $9.62 $18.60 $72.73 $4.50 $8.48 $95.90 $4.86 $2.97 $218

Capital Improvement Projects
(Edited From Stantec Rate Study)

*Projects shown in current dollars, financial model assumes 3% annual inflation in capital costs beginning in 2022

• CIP totals $218 million (2023 – 2030)

• Projects are primarily funded with debt



5-Year Revenue Sufficiency Full Capital Plan - Forecast Increases 
(Edited From Stantec Study)

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027

Operating Expenses $14,315,496 $15,260,126 $15,752,078 $16,292,299 $16,749,248 

Existing and Future Debt Service 3,753,541 4,083,041 5,414,139 8,309,640 8,562,774 

Cash Funded Capital 5,849,967 2,063,770 1,618,771 597,008 951,445 

Total Revenue Requirements 23,919,004 21,406,937 22,784,988 25,198,947 26,263,467 

Rate Increases 20% 15% 15% 12% 10%

Revenues with Rate Increases $21,456,950 $24,675,493 $28,376,817 $31,782,035 $34,960,238

ARPA Funds 2,558,994 - - - -

Annual (Shortfall) / Surplus ($98,140) $3,268,556 $5,591,829 $6,583,088 $8,696,771

Residential Customer Bill $81.19 $93.37 $107.38 $120.26 $132.28

Regional average current bill is approximately $83



Regional Monthly Residential Bill Comparison @ 5,000 gallons

3/22/2022 5



3/22/2022 6

Draw down of 
Utility Fund 
balance for 
planned CIP 
projects; 
keeping with 
the 20% rate 
increase 
creates a 
slower draw 
down of the 
fund balance.



3/22/2022 7

Lower FY22 
rate increase 
if $8.2M of 
$8.8M ARP 
invested in 
CIP.



Questions?



Rate History
• Minimal usage rate adjustments over the past decade
• Goldsboro water and sewer rates remain low compared to national and local 

utilities

3/22/2022 9



-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



1 

MINUTES OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL RETREAT 
FEBRUARY 21-22, 2022 

FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held their Annual Retreat on 
Monday, February 21, 2022 at the Goldsboro Event Center, 1501 South Slocumb Street, Goldsboro, North 
Carolina with attendance as follows:  

Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway (arrived at 9:30) 
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 
Councilman Gene Aycock 

Others  Tim Salmon, City Manager 
            Present:  Laura Getz, City Clerk 

 Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
 Roe O’Donnell, Temporary Assistant City Manager  
 Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager  
 Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk  
 Kenny Talton, Planning Director 
 Jeff Cooke, GIS Specialist  
 Mike West, Police Chief 
 Scott Williams, Information Technology Director 
 Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director  
 Bert Sherman, Interim Public Utilities Director  
 Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director  
 Ron Stempien, Fire Chief  
 Allen Anderson, Chief Building Inspector  
 Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director  
 Bobby Croom, Engineering Director 
 Adam Twiss, Paramount Theatre Director   
 Brad Hinnant, Assistant Information Technology Director  
 Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director 
 Scott Satterfield, Business & Property Development Specialist 
 Metra Sheshbaradaran, Downtown Goldsboro Intern 

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  City Manager Tim Salmon requested to add a discussion to end the mask 
mandate to the agenda. Council and the manager discussed the issue of mask mandates. Mayor Pro Tem Polack 
made a motion to keep the current policy which requires that individuals within six feet of another one will wear 
a mask. Councilwoman Matthews seconded the motion. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilmembers 
Jones, Matthews and Gaylor voted for the motion. Councilman Aycock voted against the motion  The motion 
passed.  Councilmember Gaylor made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  

Mayors Comments. Mayor Ham shared the following presentation: 

Purpose:  To address issues effecting the Growth of Goldsboro, Services to our Citizens and Improvement of 
their Quality of Life. 

What impacts these issues? 

Growth of Goldsboro:  
• Major growth in counties to our west – Wake, Harnett, Johnston (Johnston fastest growing in NC).
• Increased residential construction in west and northwest areas of Goldsboro/Wayne County.
• New industry growth since 2015 and still more to come.
• How do we prepare and support this anticipated Growth?

Item A.1



2 
 
 
 
 

Infrastructure: 
• Utilities - Look seriously at development of a clear plan to prioritize and fund the needed repairs and 

expansion of our water and sewer capabilities to serve current and future requirements. 
• Roads/streets – Repair/ Upgrades/New Construction. 

Other: 
• Revenue to the City (Property/Sales Taxes, Utility Rates/Other). 
• High Standards of Services to our Citizens. 
• Affordable Housing. 
• Jobs. 

 
Economic Development. (Mark Pope, WCDA President; Berry Gray, WC Planning Director; Kenny Talton, 

CoG Planning Director) 
 
Mark Pope, Wayne County Development Alliance President shared the following presentation: 

   

  

  

  

  



3 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Council discussed housing, quality of life, and education with Mr. Pope.  
 
Berry Gray, Wayne County Planning Director shared the following presentation: 
 

    

      
 

 
Kenny Talton, Planning Director shared the following presentation: 
  

     
 



4 
 
 
 
 

       
 

  

  
 

      
 

 
 
Mayor Ham shared that he asked for these presentations to show that Goldsboro is changing and growing and we 
need to be prepared to provide the facilities, the infrastructure, and other services.  
 

Public Utilities Presentation. Bert Sherman, Interim Public Utilities Director shared the following 
presentation: 
 



5 
 
 
 
 

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



6 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
Council discussed the issues with equipment at the plants and funding through the American Rescue Plan.  Mr. 
Sherman shared with Council that we have to do something to address the Inflow and Infiltration (I & I) issues. 
Mr. Roe O’Donnell, Temporary Assistant City Manager shared information concerning I &I studies.  He also 
shared information regarding the rate study by Stantec completed in December 2021. Bobby Croom, 
Engineering Director shared information regarding other water distribution and wastewater collection projects.  
Mr. O’Donnell shared that Council has to raise the rates or you will be in serious debt later on.  
 
The meeting recessed at 10:46 a.m. and council members divided into groups and toured the Water Treatment 
Plant and Water Reclamation Facility with the exception of Councilman Broadaway and Councilman Aycock. 
Mayor Ham toured the facilities on Friday, February 18, 2022.  
 
The meeting reconvened at 1:00 p.m.  
 



7 
 
 
 
 

Road Construction Update. Jennifer Collins with the NC Department of Transportation shared the 
following presentation: 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 



8 
 
 
 
 

 

 

    
 

 

       
 



9 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

     

 

 
 



10 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
Mrs. Collins shared information on the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), which includes Goldsboro, 
Walnut Creek, Pikeville and portions of Wayne County. Councilman Polack asked if bus canopies could be 
funded using the NCDOT funds discussed. Ms. Collins suggested the city work with Don Willis, GWTA 
Director.   
 
Mrs. Collins shared information regarding an upcoming project, the Ash Street Corridor Study.   
 

Department Head FY 22-23 Budget Items.  
 
Ron Stempien, Fire Chief shared the following presentation: 
 

 



11 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Council discussed additional calls related to EMS, department vehicles, contracts with new employees, staffing 
and retention with Chief Stempien.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 
 
 
 
 

Mike West, Police Chief shared the following presentation: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 



13 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Council discussed Shotspotter, Day Circle (Grand at Day Point), Tsunami cameras and police officers at Wayne 
County School sporting events with Chief West.    
 
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director shared the following presentation: 

         
 



14 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Council discussed the need for gutters being cleaned out and mentioned citing residents for putting pine straw in 
the gutters with Mr. Fletcher.  
 
Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director shared the following presentation: 

   



15 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
Council discussed the T.C. Coley Community Center, Berkeley Boulevard and Center Street maintenance and 
volunteer hours. City Manager Salmon asked questions about the recreation program revenues with Mrs. Brown.   
 
Scott Williams, Information Technology Director shared the following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 



16 
 
 
 
 

  
 
Council discussed the computer replacement program with Mr. Williams.  
 
CDBG-CV Funding Options. Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director shared the following 
presentation:  

    

   

   

   



17 
 
 
 
 

  
 

   
 
Council discussed the homeless commission, broadband and the 2020 CAPER with Ms. Williams. 
 

United Way of Wayne County. Mayor Ham shared information about the process for funding non-
profits in the city budget. Sherry Archibald, Executive Director shared the following presentation: 

 

   

   

   
 



18 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
Mayor Ham shared that the United Way takes on the responsibility of vetting and they have an extensive vetting 
program. Councilman Broadaway shared it takes the pressure off Council. City Manager Salmon shared it takes 
the pressure off the manager.  He shared the following slide with Council and shared there is a lot of work 
vetting these and it is possible we could give a certain amount of money to United Way and let them make those 
decisions. He shared some are not able to be funded by the United Way and would have to be funded separately.  
Councilwoman Matthews requested Council do the work themselves and give an opportunity to non-profits not 
within the scope of the United Way.  

 
 

SB-473. Ron Lawrence, City Attorney shared information regarding SB 473. He shared information from 
NC General Statue 14-234.which states: No public official shall knowingly participate in making or 
administering a contract, including the award of money in the form of a grant, loan, or other appropriation, with 
any nonprofit with which that public official is associated. The public official shall record his or her recusal with 
the clerk to the board, and once recorded, the political subdivision of this State may enter into or administer the 
contract.  
 
Council discussed non-profit boards and the new legislation with Attorney Lawrence. Attorney Lawrence shared 
that if Council is on a non-profit board and the city appropriates money to the non-profit, those non-profit boards 
would need to be removed from the annual budget ordinance and voted on as a separate item. The 
councilmembers that are part of those boards would then have to recuse themselves from the vote. Attorney 
Lawrence shared they can serve on the boards as an ex-officio non-voting member. He shared that the city needs 
to look at any of the non-profits that has a councilmember on their board and has decision-making authority on 
the board, we need to make sure Council doesn’t vote or participate in those processes.  The city clerk will send 
a list of the non-profit boards the council serves on to the Finance Director.  
 

Economic Development Assessment.  Mayor Ham shared that he brought a proposal to the Council in 
2018 for an Economic Development Study.  He shared that Goldsboro does not have an Economic Development 
Plan.  Amy Suggs and Lee Padrick with the NC Dept. of Commerce shared the following presentation: 

 

 
 



19 
 
 
 
 

  

      
 
 

 
 
Council discussed the Economic Development Assessment.  Mr. Padrick shared there would be no charge for the 
assessment. A resolution requesting the services of the NC Main Street and Rural Planning Center for the City of 
Goldsboro was presented for adoption. Councilman Aycock made a motion to accept the resolution as submitted, 
the motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  
 
RESOLUTION 2022-9 “RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE SERVICES OF THE NC MAIN STREET AND 
RURAL PLANNING CENTER FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 
 

Retreat Discussion/Decisions.  Mayor Ham asked for any discussion or comments from council. 
Councilman Broadaway stepped out of the room at 3:58 pm. Mayor Ham shared information about the ethics 
agreement with the LGC and reminded Council to complete the modules by the end of March.   
 
The meeting recessed at 4:01 p.m. 
 
FEBRUARY 22, 2022 
 
The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held their Annual Retreat on Tuesday, 
February 22, 2022 at the Goldsboro Event Center, 1501 South Slocumb Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina with 
attendance as follows:  
 

Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 
   Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
   Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 

Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 
Councilman Gene Aycock 

  
Absent:  Councilman Bill Broadaway 
 



20 
 
 
 
 

Others Present:  Tim Salmon, City Manager 
  Laura Getz, City Clerk 
  Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
  Roe O’Donnell, Temporary Assistant City Manager  
  Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager  
  Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk   
  Kenny Talton, Planning Director 
  Jeff Cooke, GIS Specialist  
  Scott Williams, Information Technology Director 
  Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director  
  Bert Sherman, Interim Public Utilities Director  
  Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director  
  Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director  
  Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 
  Bobby Croom, Engineering Director 
  Adam Twiss, Paramount Theatre Director    
  Brad Hinnant, Assistant Information Technology Director  
  Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director 
   
 Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Temporary Assistant City Manager, Roe O’Donnell shared information regarding the Stantec Rate Study:  
 

 
Council discussed rates, surplus and ARP funds with Mr. O’Donnell. Mayor Ham shared we have to make a 
decision about this before we construct our budget.  
  
 

City Council Redistricting. Marshall Hurley and Bill Gilkeson with Poyner Spruill shared the following 
presentation: 

 

  

   



21 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

   
Council discussed party affiliations, input from the Board of Elections and population vs registered voters 
(Neuse Corrections inmates).  
 
After further discussion regarding redistricting, Poyner Spruill noted they would use the corrected census 
numbers. Council directed Poyner Spruill to keep districts compact with identifiable boundaries, not to take 
demographics into account when drawing lines and to consider incumbents and put them in different districts. 
Poyner Spruill mentioned that council could adjust maps when presented and that maps would be available to 
view online. Maps will be presented at the Council meeting on March 21, 2022.     
 

 
 
 



22 
 
 
 
 

Mid-Year Finance Update. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director shared the following presentation: 

  

 

 

 

 

 



23 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 



24 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Financial Performance. Ted Cole, with Davenport shared the following presentation: 
 

   
 



25 
 
 
 
 

    
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 



26 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Juneteenth Holiday Discussion.  Bernadette Dove, Human Resources Director shared information 
concerning the origin of Juneteenth. Council and the City Manager discussed the proposal to make Juneteenth a 
paid city holiday.  Mrs. Dove discussed what it would cost the city and stated that we have some departments 
that work 24/7, Public Safety, Public Utilities, and some of Public Works and that they would get a day off at 
another time if required to work. Mrs. Dove stated that would take the paid city holidays from 11-12 to 12-13 
(depending on Christmas). Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to make Juneteenth a city holiday. The motion 
was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. The holiday will be added to the FY 22-23 
holiday schedule.   
 

FY21-22 Budget ARPA SLFRF Guidance. Tim Salmon, City Manager shared the following 
presentation: 



CDTg

O

r

4-
4 4

cd

p` 

g

x

3 

u

e

O

v

N

w

O> 

cid

O

S, 

tl1

a

A  • "

s € 

g

ry

W = 

p „  

n « 

@ 

N  

O

U

O

O  

U. 

6
9

Es

oo

V

i

z

J«

gam- 

U

p >,

U

O

O '

b

j

U

Q°

IL

Cd

cl

m

cd

M

cdcn

ID

o

o = 

o

Qn

C > 

U

r- 3

a  

o   •  -

Colt

o 

y

o ` 

tb

3

J

J

i, 

rte+ 

U +- 

cd

InC
N . . 

cd

m 

A

a

C

s

UJ _ + 

Vi

r/

1

U   , 

U

F  

m

p -

d -

b   

cd  

p '•+ 

ON

s..     

bA

IxQ

Q

o

C7

3

0 = 

cn

UD

O >, 

E

U

4 + 

a3cn

it- 

cz

COD

bMNwOONU
7:
1ba 

0cdbbCdr. RiUa INbAbDQMNNN9

ANo

9

N



m' 

cd — 

cid  .    • • .

p  

Cd

biD

y

bA

to

to

s, 

p

Cd

Cdtb
O

o

o

o

C

to

cdbCd

y
c 

c

c 

O

U

y

to

03 ° 

C

3

7 

Cd

u

o 

o

V) 

Cd03
ago .

o

p

U  

b • 

Q. .

b

O    

O  

s0,  

cd " 

C13

cn

on

Cd

o °_ 

a

o

Cd •

b ' 

Ln

U71Z
03

v 

n

c ¢' 

Nx 
cd 

F"

U

W ° 

0

M

uU> ° 

C

3

U

C7

a 

Al

Gla

C-

13

cn

cd

m

cd

UUUUH04a
U

a) 

wa . 

3

0

3

U

c 

cd

W

cd

b 

cqjo . 

bo

Cd

rA

C -

A

Cd

cd

Cd

cts

r. 

act3
ul

ri

ct

W5

cd

to

cz

Cd

ct

U

o

U

U

0-

0

a

H° 

w

U

00



Department of Environmental Quality

The Viable Utility Reserve
and the Wayne County Partnership
Christyn Fertenbaugh, P.E.



Overview

• The Viable Utility Reserve (VUR)
• Background
• Requirements
• Study Grants

• American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
• The Wayne County Partnership



3

The Viable Utility Reserve (VUR)



Master Plan – Definition of Viability

A viable system is one that functions as a 
long-term, self-sufficient business enterprise, 
establishes organizational excellence, and 
provides appropriate levels of infrastructure 
maintenance, operation, and reinvestment 

that allow the utility to provide reliable water 
services now and in the future.



Viable Utility Program

Signed into law on July 1, 2020 (Reform of Water and Wastewater 
Public Enterprises, S.L. 2020-79)
Foster the viability of water and wastewater operations across the state by: 

• Identifies and designates distressed local government units (LGUs).
• Provides a process to develop viable water/sewer utilities. 
• Joint approval by SWIA and LGC.

Initial funding  $9 million non-recurring.



Distressed Criteria

Distressed criteria were created to classify/designate LGUs and assist 
in finding solutions that will allow for them to be financially sound and 
viable moving forward. 

Approved criteria:
1. LGC has formally taken financial control of LGU.
2. No annual audit submitted in the past 2 years.
3. Total Assessment Criteria score (20 separate parameters with value ranging from 1-4).

• 9 for LGUs with both drinking water & wastewater systems.
• 8 for LGUs with only one service (drinking water or wastewater).

4. Other information has become available.



History of the VUR Program

December 2020:
• LGC and SWIA approve final distressed criteria.

2021:
• February

• LGC designates 118 LGUs as distressed.
• SWIA designates LGUs under Criteria 1 and Criteria 2 as 

distressed.
• April – SWIA designates 95 LGUs under Criteria 3 as distressed.
• September – DWI accepted applications for funding study grants 

under the VUR from eligible LGUs. 



Requirements for LGUs
Designated as Distressed

Education:
• Initial
• Continuing

Studies:
• Asset Inventory and Assessment (AIA)
• Rate Study
• Merger/Regionalization Feasibility Studies (MRF)

Action plans containing:
• Short-term action plan
• Long-term action plan
• Long-term financial management plan

https://www.hazenandsawyer.com/work/services/asset-management/

https://efc.web.unc.edu/tag/regionalization/



Initial Education

Mandatory for elected officials and utility staff:
• Those individuals responsible for providing utility services.
• Person in charge of finances (e.g., finance officer / clerk).
• Person in charge of infrastructure (e.g., utility director, town manager / administrator).

Topics:
• Basics of utility management.
• “First steps” from the Master Plan best practice areas.

• Infrastructure
• Organizational
• Financial



Initial Education Options

Via the Division of Water Infrastructure:
• In-person and interactive.
• Full day (6 hours of instruction with lunch / breaks).
• Varying locations across the state.
• Open to any distressed LGU.

Via the NC League of Municipalities:
• Advanced Municipal Leaders training.
• On-demand training.

• Mandatory completion of modules.
• Mandatory completion of webinar discussion.



Continuing Education

• Education commitment should be part of the action plans!
• Include elected officials and utility staff.

• Recurring education (similar to CEU for professional licensure).
• Under development:

• 200-level classes “Second steps”
• Infrastructure
• Organizational
• Financial

• 300-400-level classes

• Available from resource agencies.



Asset Inventory & Assessment (AIA)

• Infrastructure:
• Above-ground
• Below-ground

• Examines infrastructure condition, location, age.
• Assists with development of Capital Improvement Plan.

Photos from Town of Warrenton AIA November 9, 2020

Municipal Engineering Services Company, PA



Merger/Regionalization 
Feasibility Studies (MRF)

• Evaluates:
• Potential system consolidation(s)
• Potential for physical 

interconnection(s)
• Alternatives (options) analysis 

• Studies may include regional 
partner LGUs* not designated as 
distressed.



Rate Studies

• Should be included as part of the AIA and/or MRF process. 

• Evaluation of:
• Current rate structure.
• Historical financial information.
• Infrastructure needs/planned maintenance, upgrades, and repairs.

• Projects system financial needs and compares these to current rate 
structure.



15

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)



16



Plan for VUR ARPA Funds

• ARPA funding will be available for study grants as well as construction 
grants (estimated to be available for Spring 2022 funding round). 

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-infrastructure/i-need-funding

• Currently, criteria for funding eligibility remains the same.
• Also set by budget language and ARPA funding sources. 
• Limit of $15 million per distressed LGU (including earmarks and conversions from 

existing SRF projects)

• The VUR team + LGC + SWIA will look at reassessing list of LGUs for 
being designated as distressed in Spring 2022. 

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-infrastructure/i-need-funding


18

Wayne County Partnership



Entities Involved

• LGUs:
• Town of Eureka
• Town of Fremont
• City of Goldsboro
• Town of Mount Olive
• Town of Pikeville
• Wayne County

• Division of Water Infrastructure:
• Primary contact: Christyn Fertenbaugh
• Secondary Contact: Linda Culpepper
• Other VUR staff can assist as needed

• Each LGU’s consultant(s)

19



Current Projects

• Asset Inventory and Assessment (AIA) grants:
• Town of Eureka (WW)
• Town of Fremont (DW/WW)
• City of Goldsboro (DW/WW)
• Town of Mount Olive (previously completed)
• Town of Pikeville (DW/WW)
• Wayne County (DW)

• Merger/Regionalization Feasibility (MRF) grant:
• Grant assigned to Goldsboro
• Requires cooperation and consultation with all partners to find the best solutions for 

viability of all distressed units.

20



Status Updates

• AIAs:
• Town of Eureka (WW) – revised scope under review
• Town of Fremont (DW/WW) – revised scopes under review
• City of Goldsboro (DW/WW) – scopes from new engineer under review
• Town of Mount Olive (previously completed)
• Town of Pikeville (DW/WW) – revised scopes under review
• Wayne County (WW) – awaiting revised scopes of work

• MRF:
• Revised scope submitted and under review.
• Likely will start ~2 months after AIA work begins to allow time for AIA work to support 

the MRF study.

21



Next Steps

• Cooperation and coordination are key to success!

• Attend VUR initial education – multiple opportunities nearby in-person.
• March 14 – Pembroke
• March 15 - Wilson
• March 16 – Williamston
• Also available online on-demand 

• Begin development of required short-term and long-term plans
• May be part of AIA process
• May be developed separately

22



Thank you!
Viable Utility Reserve Staff: 

• Primary contact: Christyn Fertenbaugh, P.E. – Project Manager
• Christyn.Fertenbaugh@ncdenr.gov
• 919-707-9174

• Secondary contact: Linda Culpepper – Project Manager
• Linda.Culpepper@ncdenr.gov
• 919-707-9109

• Victor D’Amato, P.E. – VUR Supervisor
• Victor.Damato@ncdenr.gov
• 919-707-9186

mailto:Christyn.Fertenbaugh@ncdenr.gov
mailto:Linda.Culpepper@ncdenr.gov
mailto:Victor.Damato@ncdenr.gov


24

Thank you! Any Questions?







Goldsboro City Council
Alternative Redistricting Maps

Local Redistricting Service

March 21, 2022

Marshall Hurley, Attorney, Marshall Hurley PLLC

Caroline Mackie, Attorney, Poyner Spruill

Bill Gilkeson, Mapmaker



Standard Disclaimers

• We did not use partisan considerations or look at partisan election 
data in drawing these alternative maps.

• We did not talk with any individual board member about drawing 
these maps outside of a public meeting.



Criteria followed:

• We used the corrected Census data for Goldsboro’s population. We 
included the 593 people incorrectly counted in a sliver outside the city 
limits next to Neuse Correctional Center.

• We observed the legal requirements of one person one vote – all the 
districts are within the deviation range of plus or minus 5% from the ideal 
district population number. Using the corrected Census data, that ideal 
number for the six City Council districts in Goldsboro is 5,708.

• We avoided pairing incumbents – none of the three options pair 
incumbents. Each of the six incumbents would keep the same district 
number as now.

• We tried to preserve the cores of existing districts in all three alternatives. 
More about this in a minute.



Additional goals:

• Try to make the districts compact.
• Avoid dilution of minority voting strength.
• Avoid racial gerrymandering.



Current Districts



Current districts’ population deviations

District 
Number

Corrected 
2020 Total 

Pop
Ideal Dist

Pop

Raw 
Number 

Deviation 
from Ideal 

Pop

Percent 
Deviation 

from 
Ideal Pop

1 4,999 5,708 -709 -12.42%
2 6,347 5,708 +639 +11.19%
3 5,669 5,708 -39 -0.68%
4 5,532 5,708 -176 -3.08%
5 6,024 5,708 +316 +5.54%
6 5,679 5708 -29 -0.51%

City Total 34,250



Why can’t all the districts within the 5% range be left alone?
• Goldsboro is an object lesson in why that isn’t always possible.
• Districts 3, 4, and 6 are within the plus or minus 5%.
• But they can’t all be left alone in the same plan.
• District 1 needs to gain at least 425 people to get past minus-5%. 

District 1 sits on the western edge of town, and touches only Districts 
3 and 4. It must get those people from either District 3 or from 
District 4 or from both. 

• So Districts 3 and 4 can’t both be left alone in the same map.
• The following three options approach this reality in three different 

ways. 



How the three options deal with this reality:

• Option A leaves District 3 untouched, but gives District 1 its needed 
territory by taking from District 4.

• Option B leaves District 4 untouched, but gives District 1 its needed 
territory by taking from District 3. 

• Option C gives District 1 territory from both Districts 3 and 4, but each 
of those districts loses less territory than in Options A or B.

• District 6, which sits in the northeast corner of town, can be left 
untouched in all three options. And it is.



Goldsboro Option A



Side by side comparison with current map
Current Map Alternative A



Option A – population and deviation

District Number
Corrected 2020 

Total Pop Ideal Dist Pop

Raw Number 
Deviation from 

Ideal Pop
Percent Deviation 

from Ideal Pop
1 5,495 5,708 -213 -3.73%
2 5.602 5,708 -106 -1.86%
3 5,669 5,708 -39 -0.68%
4 5,827 5,708 +119 +2.08%
5 5,978 5,708 +270 +4.73%
6 5,679 5,708 -29 -0.51%

City Total 34,250



Characteristics of Alternative A
• District 3 is left untouched.
• District 1 makes up its deficit by taking territory from District 4 south 

of downtown.
• District 4 takes territory from District 2 in the residential part of 

Seymour Johnson AFB.
• District 2 takes three blocks on East Ash Street from District 5. 

Otherwise District 5 is unchanged. 
• As in all the options, District 6 is unchanged. 
• As in all the options, all incumbents are in a separate district with the 

same district number as now.



Goldsboro Option B



Side by side comparison with current map
Current Map Option B



Option B population and deviation

District 2020 Total Pop Ideal Dist Pop

Raw Number 
Deviation from 

Ideal Pop
Percent Deviation 

from Ideal Pop
1 5,615 5,708 -93 -1.63%
2 5,722 5,708 +14 +0.25%
3 5,932 5,708 +224 +3.92%
4 5,532 5,708 -176 -3.08%
5 5,770 5,708 +62 +1.09%
6 5,679 5,708 -29 -0.51%

City Total 34,250



Characteristics of Alternative B

• District 4 is left untouched.
• District 1 makes up its deficit by taking territory from District 3 

downtown, north of downtown, and in the Greenleaf area.
• District 3 takes territory from District 5 west of Goldsboro High School 

and west of Wayne Memorial Drive.
• District 5 takes territory from District 2 in the neighborhoods west of 

the Berkeley Mall.
• As in all the options, District 6 is unchanged. 
• As in all the options, all incumbents are in a separate district with the 

same district number as now.



Goldsboro Option C



Side by side comparison with current map
Current Map Option C



Alternative C - population and deviation

District 2020 Total Pop Ideal Dist Pop

Raw Number 
Deviation from 

Ideal Pop
Percent Deviation 

from Ideal Pop
1 5,457 5,708 -251 -4.40%
2 5,930 5,708 +222 +3.89%
3 5,472 5,708 -236 -4.13%
4 5,781 5,708 +73 +1.28%
5 5,931 5,708 +223 +3.91%
6 5,679 5,708 -29 -0.51%

City Total 34,250



Characteristics of Option C

• District 1 makes up its deficit by going into both Districts 3 and 4. 
• District 3 loses less of its western edge than in Option B. District 3 does not take the 

territory west of Wayne Memorial Drive from District 5 that it takes in Option B.
• District 4 loses less of the area south of downtown than in Option A. District 4 takes less 

territory in Seymour Johnson from District 2 than it does in Option A.
• District 5 is less changed than in Option B. It keeps the area on Wayne Memorial Drive it 

would lose in Option B and keeps the blocks along Ash Street it would lose in Option A. 
District 5 does not take the territory west of Berkeley Mall that it takes in Option B. The 
only change to District 5 is on its western border with District 3.

• District 2 loses less of Seymour Johnson than in Option A and does not gain or lose 
territory with District 5.

• As in all the options, District 6 is unchanged. 
• As in all the options, all incumbents are in a separate district with the same district 

number as now.



Side by side comparison of all 4 maps

Current map

Option B

Option A

Option C



Demographic comparison for all 4 maps
Black % of Total Population

District
Current

Uncorrected
Current 

Corrected Option A Option B Option C
1 63.96 63.37 65.28 63.92 64.91
2 40.96 40.96 44.82 42.68 42.53
3 69.34 69.31 69.31 68.91 68.31
4 64.01 64.01 55.47 64.01 60.23
5 57.79 57.77 57.86 53.00 57.90
6 42.10 42.10 42.10 42.10 42.10

Black % of Voting Age Population

District
Current

Uncorrected
Current 

Corrected Option A Option B Option C
1 60.17 60.00 62.12 61.11 62.21
2 39.93 39.93 42.68 41.83 41.06
3 66.42 66.39 66.39 65.46 64.96
4 63.22 63.22 56.04 63.22 60.08
5 54.39 54.38 54.43 49.66 54.32
6 41.10 41.10 41.10 41.10 41.10

White % of Total Population
District

Current 
Uncorrected

Current 
Corrected Option A Option B Option C

1 29.69 30.51 28.41 29.47 28.42

2 45.72 45.72 42.65 43.60 44.54

3 22.92 22.88 22.88 23.42 24.21
4 26.48 26.48 33.71 26.48 29.63
5 32.82 32.90 32.79 37.56 32.73
6 45.04 45.04 45.04 45.04 45.04

White % of Voting Age Population
District

Current
Uncorrected

Current 
Corrected Option A Option B Option C

1 33.56 33.99 31.84 32.77 31.61

2 48.21 48.21 46.14 46.03 47.47
3 26.35 26.32 26.32 26.89 27.98
4 27.51 27.51 33.50 27.51 29.96
5 36.78 36.84 36.76 41.58 36.78
6 47.22 47.22 47.22 47.22 47.22



Next Steps

• Discuss alternative maps
• Public hearing on some or 

all plans
• Vote on selected plan and 

adopt resolution
• We will export final plan to 

Board of Elections



Interactive 
Map
• https://mapfigurenc.maps.ar

cgis.com/apps/webappviewer
/index.html?id=75d5abcdeeb
9471fa2f4452124d04540

https://mapfigurenc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=75d5abcdeeb9471fa2f4452124d04540


Questions/Discussion



 

 

 
 

Goldsboro City Council Current Districts 



 

 

 

 
 

Goldsboro Option A 
 

 



 

 

 

 

Goldsboro Option B 
 

 



 

 
 

Goldsboro Option C 



Goldsboro City Council Current Districts Uncorrected ‐‐ Total Population 2020

District  TOTAL Deviation # % Dev WHITE WHITE % BLACK BLACK % AIAN AIAN % ASIAN ASIAN % HPI HPI % OTHER OTHER % MLTMN MLTMN % TOTALHISP TOTALHISP % TOTALNH TOTALNH %
1 4,406 ‐1204 ‐21.46 1308 29.69 2818 63.96 63 1.43 30 0.68 3 0.07 136 3.09 48 1.09 213 4.83 4193 95.17
2 6,347 737 13.14 2902 45.72 2600 40.96 86 1.35 247 3.89 9 0.14 377 5.94 126 1.99 620 9.77 5727 90.23
3 5,669 35 0.62 1294 22.92 3914 69.34 30 0.53 91 1.61 1 0.02 229 4.06 86 1.52 296 5.24 5349 94.76
4 5,532 ‐78 ‐1.39 1465 26.48 3541 64.01 60 1.08 136 2.46 9 0.16 228 4.12 93 1.68 500 9.04 5032 90.96
5 6,024 438 7.81 1985 32.82 3495 57.79 43 0.71 163 2.70 9 0.15 275 4.55 78 1.29 357 5.90 5691 94.10
6 5,679 69 1.23 2558 45.04 2391 42.10 67 1.18 298 5.25 9 0.16 264 4.65 92 1.62 397 6.99 5282 93.01

33657

Goldsboro City Council Current Districts Uncorrected ‐‐ Voting Age Population 2020
District  TOTAL1WHITE18 WHITE18 %BLACK18BLACK18 % AIAN18 AIAN18 % ASIAN18 ASIAN18 %HPI18 HPI18 % OTHER18 OTHER18 % MLTMN18 MLTMN18 %HISP18 HISP18 % NONHISP18 NONHISP18 %

1 3540 1188 33.56 2130 60.17 54 1.53 27 0.76 1 0.03 116 3.28 24 0.68 156 4.41 3384 95.59
2 4819 2323 48.21 1924 39.93 44 0.91 199 4.13 9 0.19 249 5.17 71 1.47 375 7.78 4444 92.22
3 4360 1149 26.35 2896 66.42 20 0.46 66 1.51 0 0.00 167 3.83 62 1.42 192 4.40 4168 95.60
4 4187 1152 27.51 2647 63.22 37 0.88 112 2.67 8 0.19 158 3.77 73 1.74 355 8.48 3832 91.52
5 4813 1770 36.78 2618 54.39 32 0.66 124 2.58 9 0.19 207 4.30 53 1.10 266 5.53 4547 94.47
6 4608 2176 47.22 1894 41.10 53 1.15 238 5.16 6 0.13 183 3.97 58 1.26 251 5.45 4357 94.55

Goldsboro City Council Current Districts Corrected ‐‐ Total Population 2020

District  TOTAL Deviation # % Dev WHITE WHITE % BLACK BLACK % AIAN AIAN % ASIAN ASIAN % HPI HPI % OTHER OTHER % MLTMN MLTMN % TOTALHISP TOTALHISP % TOTALNH TOTALNH %
1 4,999 ‐709 ‐12.42% 1525 30.51 3168 63.37 70 1.40 30 0.6 3 0.06 155 3.10 48 0.96 234 4.68 4765 95.32
2 6,347 639 11.19% 2902 45.72 2600 40.96 86 1.35 247 3.89 9 0.14 377 5.94 126 1.99 620 9.77 5727 90.23
3 5,669 ‐39 ‐0.68% 1297 22.88 3929 69.31 30 0.53 91 1.61 1 0.02 231 4.07 90 1.59 303 5.34 5366 94.66
4 5,532 ‐176 ‐3.08% 1465 26.48 3541 64.01 60 1.08 136 2.46 9 0.16 228 4.12 93 1.68 500 9.04 5032 90.96
5 6,024 316 5.54% 1982 32.90 3480 57.77 43 0.71 163 2.71 9 0.15 273 4.53 74 1.23 350 5.81 5674 94.19
6 5,679 ‐29 ‐0.51% 2558 45.04 2391 42.10 67 1.18 298 5.25 9 0.16 264 4.65 92 1.62 397 6.99 5282 93.01

34250

Goldsboro City Council Current Districts Corrected ‐‐ Voting Age Population 2020
District  TOTAL1WHITE18 WHITE18 %BLACK18BLACK18 % AIAN18 AIAN18 % ASIAN18 ASIAN18 %HPI18 HPI18 % OTHER18 OTHER18 % MLTMN18 MLTMN18 %HISP18 HISP18 % NONHISP18 NONHISP18 %

1 1405 33.99 2480 60.00 61 1.48 27 0.65 1 0.02 135 3.27 24 0.58 177 4.28 3956 95.72
2 2323 48.21 1924 39.93 44 0.91 199 4.13 9 0.19 249 5.17 71 1.47 375 7.78 4444 92.22
3 1152 26.32 2906 66.39 20 0.46 66 1.51 0 0.00 167 3.82 66 1.51 195 4.46 4182 95.54
4 1152 27.51 2647 63.22 37 0.88 112 2.67 8 0.19 158 3.77 73 1.74 355 8.48 3832 91.52
5 1767 36.84 2608 54.38 32 0.67 124 2.59 9 0.19 207 4.32 49 1.02 263 5.48 4533 94.52
6 2176 47.22 1894 41.10 53 1.15 238 5.16 6 0.13 183 3.97 58 1.26 251 5.45 4357 94.55



Goldsboro City Council Option A ‐‐ Total Population 2020

District  TOTAL Deviation # % Dev WHITE WHITE % BLACK BLACK % AIAN AIAN % ASIAN ASIAN % HPI HPI % OTHER OTHER % MLTMN MLTMN % TOTALHISP TOTALHISP % TOTALNH TOTALNH %
1 5495 ‐213 ‐3.73% 1561 28.41 3587 65.28 71 1.29 36 0.66 4 0.07 179 3.26 57 1.04 263 4.79 5232 95.21
2 5602 ‐106 ‐1.86% 2389 42.65 2511 44.82 71 1.27 198 3.53 8 0.14 315 5.62 110 1.96 476 8.50 5126 91.50
3 5669 ‐39 ‐0.68% 1297 22.88 3929 69.31 30 0.53 91 1.61 1 0.02 231 4.07 90 1.59 303 5.34 5366 94.66
4 5827 119 2.08% 1964 33.71 3232 55.47 76 1.30 179 3.07 9 0.15 267 4.58 100 1.72 616 10.57 5211 89.43
5 5978 270 4.73% 1960 32.79 3459 57.86 41 0.69 163 2.73 9 0.15 272 4.55 74 1.24 349 5.84 5629 94.16
6 5679 ‐29 ‐0.51% 2558 45.04 2391 42.10 67 1.18 298 5.25 9 0.16 264 4.65 92 1.62 397 6.99 5282 93.01

34250

Goldsboro City Council Option A ‐‐ Voting Age Population 2020
District  TOTAL1WHITE18 WHITE18 %BLACK18BLACK18 % AIAN18 AIAN18 % ASIAN18 ASIAN18 %HPI18 HPI18 % OTHER18 OTHER18 % MLTMN18 MLTMN18 %HISP18 HISP18 % NONHISP18 NONHISP18 %

1 4522 1440 31.84 2809 62.12 61 1.35 31 0.69 2 0.04 151 3.34 28 0.62 197 4.36 4325 95.64
2 4419 2039 46.14 1886 42.68 34 0.77 177 4.01 8 0.18 211 4.77 64 1.45 305 6.9 4114 93.1
3 4377 1152 26.32 2906 66.39 20 0.46 66 1.51 0 0.00 167 3.82 66 1.51 195 4.46 4182 95.54
4 4236 1419 33.50 2374 56.04 48 1.13 130 3.07 8 0.19 181 4.27 76 1.79 406 9.58 3830 90.42
5 4758 1749 36.76 2590 54.43 31 0.65 124 2.61 9 0.19 206 4.33 49 1.03 262 5.51 4496 94.49
6 4608 2176 47.22 1894 41.10 53 1.15 238 5.16 6 0.13 183 3.97 58 1.26 251 5.45 4357 94.55

Goldsboro City Council Option B ‐‐ Total Population 2020
District  TOTAL Deviation # % Dev WHITE WHITE % BLACK BLACK % AIAN AIAN % ASIAN ASIAN % HPI HPI % OTHER OTHER % MLTMN MLTMN % TOTALHISP TOTALHISP % TOTALNH TOTALNH %

1 5615 ‐93 ‐1.63% 1655 29.47 3589 63.92 74 1.32 44 0.78 4 0.07 183 3.26 66 1.18 263 4.68 5352 95.32
2 5722 14 0.25% 2495 43.60 2442 42.68 79 1.38 220 3.84 9 0.16 358 6.26 119 2.08 596 10.42 5126 89.58
3 5932 224 3.92% 1389 23.42 4088 68.91 32 0.54 95 1.60 1 0.02 243 4.10 84 1.42 349 5.88 5583 94.12
4 5532 ‐176 ‐3.08% 1465 26.48 3541 64.01 60 1.08 136 2.46 9 0.16 228 4.12 93 1.68 500 9.04 5032 90.96
5 5770 62 1.09% 2167 37.56 3058 53.00 44 0.76 172 2.98 8 0.14 252 4.37 69 1.20 299 5.18 5471 94.82
6 5679 ‐29 ‐0.51% 2558 45.04 2391 42.10 67 1.18 298 5.25 9 0.16 264 4.65 92 1.62 397 6.99 5282 93.01

34250

Goldsboro City Council Option B ‐‐ Voting Age Population 2020
District  TOTAL1WHITE18 WHITE18 %BLACK18BLACK18 % AIAN18 AIAN18 % ASIAN18 ASIAN18 %HPI18 HPI18 % OTHER18 OTHER18 % MLTMN18 MLTMN18 %HISP18 HISP18 % NONHISP18 NONHISP18 %

1 4639 1520 32.77 2835 61.11 64 1.38 30 0.65 1 0.02 152 3.28 37 0.80 187 4.03 4452 95.97
2 4310 1984 46.03 1803 41.83 42 0.97 172 3.99 9 0.21 235 5.45 65 1.51 359 8.33 3951 91.67
3 4575 1230 26.89 2995 65.46 20 0.44 78 1.70 1 0.02 186 4.07 65 1.42 250 5.46 4325 94.54
4 4187 1152 27.51 2647 63.22 37 0.88 112 2.67 8 0.19 158 3.77 73 1.74 355 8.48 3832 91.52
5 4601 1913 41.58 2285 49.66 31 0.67 136 2.96 8 0.17 185 4.02 43 0.93 214 4.65 4387 95.35
6 4608 2176 47.22 1894 41.10 53 1.15 238 5.16 6 0.13 183 3.97 58 1.26 251 5.45 4357 94.55



Goldsboro City Council Option C ‐‐ Total Population 2020
District  TOTAL Deviation # % Dev WHITE WHITE % BLACK BLACK % AIAN AIAN % ASIAN ASIAN % HPI HPI % OTHER OTHER % MLTMN MLTMN % TOTALHISP TOTALHISP % TOTALNH TOTALNH %

1 5457 ‐251 ‐4.40% 1551 28.42 3542 64.91 73 1.34 36 0.66 3 0.05 193 3.54 59 1.08 264 4.84 5193 95.16
2 5930 222 3.89% 2641 44.54 2522 42.53 78 1.32 223 3.76 9 0.15 342 5.77 115 1.94 555 9.36 5375 90.64
3 5472 ‐236 ‐4.13% 1325 24.21 3738 68.31 28 0.51 94 1.72 1 0.02 200 3.65 86 1.57 278 5.08 5194 94.92
4 5781 73 1.28% 1713 29.63 3482 60.23 67 1.16 158 2.73 9 0.16 252 4.36 100 1.73 554 9.58 5227 90.42
5 5931 223 3.91% 1941 32.73 3434 57.90 43 0.73 156 2.63 9 0.15 277 4.67 71 1.20 356 6.00 5575 94.00
6 5679 ‐29 ‐0.51% 2558 45.04 2391 42.10 67 1.18 298 5.25 9 0.16 264 4.65 92 1.62 397 6.99 5282 93.01

34250

Goldsboro City Council Option C ‐‐ Voting Age Population 2020
District  TOTAL1WHITE18 WHITE18 %BLACK18BLACK18 % AIAN18 AIAN18 % ASIAN18 ASIAN18 %HPI18 HPI18 % OTHER18 OTHER18 % MLTMN18 MLTMN18 %HISP18 HISP18 % NONHISP18 NONHISP18 %

1 4517 1428 31.61 2810 62.21 62 1.37 29 0.64 1 0.02 157 3.48 30 0.66 191 4.23 4326 95.77
2 4586 2177 47.47 1883 41.06 38 0.83 184 4.01 9 0.2 229 4.99 66 1.44 346 7.54 4240 92.46
3 4224 1182 27.98 2744 64.96 19 0.45 71 1.68 0 0.00 144 3.41 64 1.52 182 4.31 4042 95.69
4 4289 1285 29.96 2577 60.08 43 1.00 126 2.94 8 0.19 173 4.03 77 1.80 378 8.81 3911 91.19
5 4696 1727 36.78 2551 54.32 32 0.68 118 2.51 9 0.19 213 4.54 46 0.98 268 5.71 4428 94.29
6 4608 2176 47.22 1894 41.10 53 1.15 238 5.16 6 0.13 183 3.97 58 1.26 251 5.45 4357 94.55

AIAN means American Indian/Alaska Native
HPI means Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
MLTMN is a multi racial category
HISP and NONHISP or NH mean Hispanic and Non‐Hispanic



E









P a g e  1 | 2 

Item _______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
MARCH 21, 2022 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING 
Z-2-22 Eastern Hill, Inc. – South side of E. Elm Street between Crawford St. 
and Beale St. and within the corporate City limits   

BACKGROUND: The applicant is requesting a change of zone from Residential (R6) to 
General Business (GB) for three (3) private lots which are of continuous 
frontage and under single ownership within the Residential (R6) zoning 
district. 

If approved, the owner will be required to recombine the lots into one for 
commercial development purposes meeting the requirements of the 
General Business (GB) zoning district. 

In addition, a variance will be required for one of the three lots consisting of 
an existing non-conforming commercial building which does not meet the 
required front setback of 20ft. along E. Elm, Crawford and Hugh St. 

Frontage: 159.4 ft. (E. Elm St.), 97.3 ft. (Crawford St.) and 146.3 ft. 
(Hugh St.) 

Area: 14,385 sq. ft. or 0.33 acres 

SURROUNDING ZONING: 

North: General Business (GB) 

South: Residential (R-6) 

East:  Residential (R-6) 

West: General Business (GB) 

Existing Use:  Two of the three lots fronting E. Elm St. are vacant.  The third 
lot at the corner of E. Elm and Crawford consists of an existing non-
conforming, one-story brick-veneer and concrete block commercial building 
of approximately 1,782 sq. ft.    

Land Use Plan Recommendation:  The City’s Land Use Plan recommends 
High-Density Residential development for the property. 

DISCUSSION: The applicant intends to rehabilitate the existing commercial building for 
business and professional services. 

F











G















H

















Item I





















J





Page 1 of 3 
 

                                                     SUPPLY AGREEMENT  
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the 25th day of March 2022 by and between Sonoco Recycling, LLC, (“Sonoco”) 
a North Carolina limited liability company of Charlotte, North Carolina, and City of Goldsboro, (“City of Goldsboro”). 
 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the matters hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. For a period of seventeen (15) months beginning April 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, City of Goldsboro agrees to deliver, 

and Sonoco agrees to receive the entire accumulation of acceptable recyclable material generated and collected by 
City of Goldsboro.  City of Goldsboro also agrees to use best efforts to ensure that the material provided to Sonoco shall 
not include any “Hazardous Substances.”  For purposes of this Agreement, Hazardous Substances shall include, but not 
be limited to, any hazardous or toxic substance, hazardous chemical, material, waste, or compound including known 
carcinogens or other chemicals known to be a risk to human health and the environment such as petroleum products 
and asbestos containing materials and including those wastes, materials and substances regulated under state and 
federal laws including the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act and the Toxic Substances 
Control Act.    

 
2. Sonoco shall determine the revenue or charge for City of Goldsboro monthly for each Ton of inbound Single Stream 

Recyclable Materials delivered to the Sonoco Recycling Raleigh Location. The payment per Ton shall be calculated as 
described below. Each month, Sonoco shall calculate the Weighted Average Price (WAP) of City of Goldsboro’s 
Recyclable Materials, and provide this to City of Goldsboro, defined as the sum of the Southeast USA regional commodity 
prices (U.S. Dollars per Ton) first posted in the month for which payment is being made in PPI Pulp & Paper Week for fiber 
commodities and the Atlanta (Southeast) regional commodity prices  posted the first issue of the month, low side, for 
which payment is being made on RecyclingMarkets.net for non-fiber commodities multiplied by the Composition. If at 
any time during the term of the Agreement either PPI Pulp & Paper Week or RecyclingMarkets.net no longer posts, 
otherwise provides the applicable market indices, or either Party demonstrates that the market indices do not reflect 
current market conditions, then the parties shall mutually select an appropriate replacement source for the required 
information from among the sources recycling industry professionals utilize to obtain reliable Recovered Material pricing 
information. 

 
3. Sonoco shall pay or charge City of Goldsboro for each Ton of Single Stream Recyclable Materials delivered to the 

Sonoco Recycling Raleigh Location based on the WAP of City of Goldsboro’s Recyclable Materials as described in (2) 
above and determined as follows: 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Weighted Average Price Residential Single Stream Pricing  

WAP ≤ $117.50/ton Charge of the difference between the WAP and $117.50 

WAP > $117.50/ton Revenue share of 40% to City of Goldsboro 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Composition to be updated annually, based on Sonoco Recycling Raleigh MRF’s outbound percentages across all 
materials, as an example below: 
 
   

MATERIALS CURBSIDE 
  ALLOCATIONS 
    

GLASS 0.2210  
ALUMINUM CANS 0.0112  

STEEL 0.0167  
HDPE Color 0.0113  

HDPE NATURAL 0.0074  
PET 0.0412  

Mixed Paper  0.2491  
Plastics 3-7 0.0032  

OCC  0.2432  
Trash 0.1957  

    
    
  100.00% 

 
 
 

 
4. Payment of invoices by City of Goldsboro shall be net thirty (30) days and will be based on Sonoco’s scale weights, payments 

to Sonoco Recycling, LLC 91218 Collection Center Drive, Chicago, IL 60693.  Payment of rebates by Sonoco shall be net (60) 
days and will be based on Sonoco’s scale weights. Remittances will be made to: City of Goldsboro – 200 North Center Street, 
Goldsboro NC 27530. 

 
5. Sonoco reserves the right to inspect and reject or adjust pricing for contaminated materials, received from City of Goldsboro 

and Sonoco will have the option to apply a disposal fee for unacceptable material that is delivered by City of Goldsboro, or 
on the behalf of City of Goldsboro. 

 
6. If Sonoco experiences an extraordinary change in costs or benefits hereunder such as, for example, the imposition of a 

surcharge by a supplier to Sonoco, or an increase in Sonoco's fuel or other costs, or changes in market prices for materials 
supplied hereunder, Sonoco and City of Goldsboro will discuss an appropriate price adjustment. If Sonoco and City of 
Goldsboro do not, each acting in good faith, agree to an adjustment within ten (10) days of Sonoco's written request 
with supporting documentation, Sonoco may terminate this Agreement after thirty (30) additional days’ written notice to 
City of Goldsboro. 

 
7. City of Goldsboro shall indemnify and save Sonoco harmless from and against, and shall reimburse Sonoco for, any and all 

claims, demands, losses, liability, expenses, or costs, of every kind and nature (including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and 
court costs), for damage to or loss of property of any person or entity and for injury to, illness, disease, or death of, any person 
arising, in whole or in part, out of or in connection with City of Goldsboro or its agent’s or subcontractor’s negligence or other 
wrongful conduct.  City of Goldsboro’s liability to Sonoco as set forth in the preceding sentence shall be limited by the extent 
to which the damage, loss, injury, illness, disease, or death is due to any acts or omissions of Sonoco. 

 





K





RESOLUTION NO. 2022 — oZ. 5 - 

RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL

AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH US CELLULAR

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns a water tank located at 904 Harris Street. The
city entered into an agreement and Memorandum of Lease with US Cellular for the installation
of cellular and broadband antenna facilities on the city water tank; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statute 160A- 272, staff is requesting that council
ratify the actions of the city council at their meeting on July 6, 2015 and approve the agreement
and Memorandum of Lease with US Cellular; and

WHEREAS, the agreement and Memorandum of Lease were entered into without the

proper notice and resolution requirements being met; and

WHEREAS, the US Cellular agreement and Memorandum of Lease is dated September

21, 2015. The location of the US Cellular equipment is 904 Harris Street, Goldsboro, NC. The

lease amount is $26,400, paid annually. The base fee would increase by 3% annually for the term
of the lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro North Carolina, that this Resolution ratifies the actions taken by council at the
meeting on July 6, 2015 and approves the agreement and Memorandum of Lease with US
Cellular. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 21
sc

day of March 2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, Getz, City Cloa



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 — ; Z 6

RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF CITY STAFF AND APPROVING AN

AGREEMENT WITH T -MOBILE AND OPEN BROADBAND

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns water tanks located at 904 Harris Street, 100 E. 
Holly Street, 621 N. Madison Avenue and 512 E. New Hope Road. The city has entered into
agreements with US Cellular, T -Mobile and Open Broadband for the installation of cellular and

broadband antenna facilities on city water tanks; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statute 160A-272, staff is requesting that council
ratify the actions of city staff and approve the agreement with T -Mobile ( including the 2022
amendment) and the agreement with Open Broadband; and

WHEREAS, the agreements were entered into without the proper notice and resolution

requirements being met; and

WHEREAS, the T -Mobile original agreement is dated January 10, 2017. The location of
the T -Mobile equipment is 671 N. Madison Avenue, Goldsboro, NC. The lease amount is

26, 400, paid annually. The base fee would increase by 3% annually for the term of the lease. 

WHEREAS, the T -Mobile amendment to the January 10, 2017 agreement is dated
January 28, 2022. The location of the T -Mobile equipment is 671 N. Madison Avenue, 

Goldsboro, NC. The lease amount is $ 26, 400, paid annually. The base fee would increase by 3% 
annually for the term of the lease. 

WHEREAS, the Open Broadband agreement is dated December 8, 2020. The locations

of the Open Broadband equipment is 904 Harris Street, 100 E. Holly Street, 621 N. Madison
Avenue, 512 E. New Hope Road, Goldsboro, NC. The lease amount is $ 0. The agreement

allows free use of 50 Mbps internet service at each tower location for use as the City sees fit, 
including but not limited to free public Wi-Fi to the community and use by city personnel. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro North Carolina, this Resolution ratifies the actions of city staff and Council approves
the agreements with T -Mobile and Open Broadband. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 21 st day of March 2022. 

Attested by: 

aura Getz, City Clerl

David Hahi, Mayor















STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

WATER TOWER ATTACHMENT LEASE

COUNTY OF WAYNE

THIS WATER TOWER ATTACHMENT LEASE (" Lease") is made effective as of the

latter signature date hereof (the " Execution Date") and is by and between the City of Goldsboro, 
a North Carolina municipal corporation (" Landlord") and T -Mobile South LLC, a Delaware

limited liability company (" Tenant"). 

WHEREAS, Landlord desires to lease to Tenant and Tenant desires to lease from
Landlord ( a) certain space on a water tower owned by Landlord upon which Tenant intends to
mount certain of Tenant' s antennas together with related and ancillary equipment and ( b) certain
ground space upon real property owned by Landlord upon which Tenant intends to install other
related equipment and devices. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms and mutual promises herein

contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows: 

1. Site. Landlord hereby grants to Tenant a lease to ( a) install, maintain, operate and
remove Tenant's wireless communications equipment and appurtenances on a water tower owned

by Landlord (" Tower"), including antennas on a " Corral" to be constructed by Tenant located
atop of the Tower (" Tower Space"), which is located on certain real property owned by Landlord
more particularly described in Exhibit " A" attached hereto (" Property"); and ( b) to install, 

maintain, operate and remove Tenant' s equipment cabinet or compound and related devices

owned or leased by Tenant on a One Hundred Twenty ( 120) square foot portion of the Property
at a location depicted on Exhibit " A -I" attached hereto (" Ground Space") ( the Tower Space and

the Ground Space shall hereinafter sometimes be referred to collectively as the " Site"). In no

event will the Sites include the air space above Tenant's equipment that is situated on the Ground

Space, and Landlord reserves the right to install or construct additional improvements above
such Ground Space equipment, provided that such additional improvements do not interfere with

the access to and operation of Tenant's equipment. Interference of Tenant' s operations, as herein

defined, is the blockage, hindrance or impairment of the transmission or receipt of

communications signals of Tenant' s communications facilities or Tenant' s inability to access the
site for its installation, maintenance and repair.. 

2. Access. Landlord also grants Tenant a nonexclusive right of access to the Site for

the installation of Tenant' s utilities, equipment and improvement during the Initial Term and any
Renewal Term ( defined in paragraphs five and six, respectively) of this Lease over that real
property described in Exhibit " B" attached hereto ( collectively, " Easement") for pedestrian and
vehicular ingress and egress, provided the access does not interfere with Landlord' s use of the
Property or any of Landlord' s improvements thereon. Access to the Ground Space shall be
granted twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven ( 7) days per week. Tenant' s equipment located on
the Ground Space shall be located in a separate and secure fenced area that Tenant can access. 

Access to the Tower Space shall be granted upon forty- eight ( 48) hours or two business days
advance notice, whichever is longer, except in case of an emergency situation which poses an

Site Number:SGk00S0A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas



immediate threat of substantial harm or damage to persons or property ( including the continued
operations of Tenants telecommunications equipment), Tenant may access the Tower Space to
conduct emergency repairs, provided that promptly after the emergency entry and in no event
later than twenty- four ( 24) homy, Tenant gives telephonic and written notice to Landlord of
Tenant' s envy onto the Tower Space. Any agent of Tenant seeking access to the Tower must
electronically submit photo identification ( driver' s license) and identification from the company
that is sending said agent to perform maintenance and/ or repairs to Landlord. Landlord will deny
access to anyone without proper identification. 

3. Modification of Site. If as a result of any tests or investigations conducted by
Tenant, or if required in connection with obtaining any necessary zoning approvals or other
certificates, permits, licenses, or approvals, Tenant desires to alter or modify the description of
the Site in Exhibit "A- 1 " ( and Exhibit " C" if then applicable) so as to relocate or enlarge all or

any portion of the Site to other portions of Landlord' s surrounding Property ( a " Relocation Site"), 
Tenant shall notify Landlord of such desire and deliver to Landlord a copy of the survey and
legal description of the portions of the Site and Landlord' s surrounding Property that Tenant
proposes as a Relocation Site. Landlord shall have the right to approve or deny any Relocation
Site, and Landlord agrees not to unreasonably withhold its approval. Landlord agrees to review
and consider Tenant' s relocation request and any proposed Relocation Site in good faith and to
cooperate with Tenant to attempt, if reasonably possible, to approve the Tenant' s proposed
Relocation Site or such other Relocation Site as may be agreed upon by Landlord and Tenant as
will allow Tenant to use the same for the use intended by Tenant for the Site as hereinafter set
forth in this Lease. If Landlord approves a Relocation Site, then Tenant shall have the right to
substitute the Relocation Site for the Site and to substitute the description of the approved

Relocation Site for description of the Site in Exhibit "A-1" ( and Exhibit " C" if then applicable), 
and the Site shall thereafter consist of the Relocation Site so approved and substituted. If

requested by Tenant, Landlord shall execute an amendment to this Lease to evidence the
substitution of the Relocation Site as the Site. Notwithstanding the above, any modifications to
this Lease shall be subject to any of Landlord' s applicable approval requirements, including, but
not limited to, receiving approval of its legislative governing body. 

4. Use. Tenant may use the Site for the receipt and transmission of wireless
communications signals ( such transmission and reception to be solely within the spectrum
licensed to Tenant or T -Mobile License LLC;T-Mobile South LLC; SunCom Wireless Property
Company, L.L.C.; SunCorn Wireless License Company, LLC; T -Mobile USA, Inc; and Metro
PCS ; MetroPCS Georgia, LLC (" Affiliates") by the Federal Communications Commission

FCC")), The use granted to Tenant by this Lease shall be nonexclusive and limited in strict
accordance with the terms of this Lease. The parties acknowledge and agree that Tenant' s

Equipment" ( as defined in paragraph 9( c)) at the Site shall be solely for its own use and that of
its current Affiliates under no circa nstances shall such use be shared with, or such Equipment

otherwise be used by or for the benefit of (whether directly or indirectly) any other person or
entity. The Equipment shall be utilized by Tenant and/ or Tenant' s current Affiliates solely for
services to be provided to Tenant's " End User". For the purposes hereof, End Users shall mean

any person or entity that subscribes to Tenant' s or Tenant' s current Affiliates' services and does
not resell such services to, or otherwise make such service available to, others, except in

accordance with industry standard roaming agreements. The parties agree that use is limited to

Site Number:5GK0050A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas



Tenant and Tenant' s current Affiliates, if another telecommunications provider later is purchased

by Tenant, Tenant' s current Affiliates, and/ or Tenant' s Parent Company or if Tenant, Tenant' s
current Affiliates, and/ or Tenant' s Parent Company are acquired by or merged with any other
telecommunications companies or a company holding an ownership interest in any other
telecommunications companies, Landlord approval shall be required for any additional wireless
communications carriers to use the site and Landlord in Landlord' s sole discretion may require
said provider to enter into a separate lease agreement or to charge additional rental fees under

this lease agreement for allowing the use of the premises by said provider. It is understood that
no additional rent or charges will be incurred by Tenant due to Tenants roaming agreements, 
standard in the industry, Nor shall any extra charge be made due to an intracompany
restructuring of Affiliates in which there has been no merger or acquisition as referenced herein. 

Landlord shall have the right to continue to occupy the Property and to enter into lease and
license agreements with others for the Property and the Tower in the sole discretion of Landlord
but such usage by Landlord or other tenants or lessees shall not interfere with Tenant' s rights
under this Lease. Tenant shall have the right to terminate the Lease with written notice to

Landlord if Tenant experiences performance problems for any reason which makes the Site
infeasible or unacceptable for continued operation or if the Site becomes unacceptable for

economic reasons, or unacceptable under its design or engineering specifications. In the event
Tenant terminates this Lease in accordance with this section 4 above, Tenant shall pay Landlord
3 months' rent at the then current rate. 

5. Initial Term. The initial term of this Lease shall begin on the date this Lease is
fully executed ( the " Commencement Date"), and shall continue until midnight on the fifth ( 5th) 

anniversary of the Commencement Date ( the " Initial Term"). 

6. Renewal Terms. This Lease will automatically renew for four ( 4) additional five
5) year terms upon the same terms and conditions unless the Tenant notifies the Landlord in

writing of Tenant' s intention to not renew this Lease at least sixty ( 60) days prior to the
expiration of the existing term. 

7. Consideration. ( a) Base Fee. Tenant shall pay annually to Landlord ( or to such
other person, firm or place as Landlord may, from time to time designate in writing) as
consideration for this Lease the annual amount of Twenty Six Thousand Four Hundred and
no/ 100 dollars ($ 26,400. 00) ( the " Base Fee") to be paid annually during the first five years of the
term, in advance, within twenty ( 20) days of the Commencement Date and on each successive
anniversary thereof. The Base Fee shall increase each year on the anniversary of each Lease Year
by an amount equal to three percent ( 3%) over the Base Fee payable for the immediately
preceding Lease Year. The Base Fee shall be due without set-off notice or demand from
Landlord to Tenant. Any Base Fee or other sum not received by Landlord, or its designee, on
time after fifteen ( 15) days' notice to Tenant shall be subject to a late charge of four percent
4%) of the amount which is overdue to compensate Landlord for the estimated additional

administrative expense incurred as a result of such late payment. ( b) Taxes. If at any time during
the Initial Term or any Renewal Term or extension thereof a tax or excise on Base Fee, or other
tax however described ( except any franchise, estate, inheritance, capital stock, income or excess
profits tax unposed upon Landlord) is levied or assessed against Landlord by any lawful taxing
authority on account of Landlord' s interest in this Lease or the Base Fee or other charges

Site Number.SGKOOSOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

3



reserved or paid hereunder, as a substitute in whole or in part, or in addition to the general taxes

described herein directly attributable to Tenant' s equipment or this Lease, Tenant agrees to pay
to Landlord, or its designee, upon demand, and in addition to the Base Fee and other charges
prescribed in this License, the amount of such tax or excise. In the event such tax or excise is

levied or assessed directly against Tenant, then Tenant shall be responsible for and shall pay the
same at such times and in such manner as the taxing authority shall requite. ( c) Any Base Fee or
other payment made by Tenant shall contain a notation of the Landlord site name applicable to

this Lease, which site name is Harris Street Water Tower and shall be mailed to City of
Goldsboro, Finance Department, P. O. Drawer A, Goldsboro, North Carolina 27533. Landlord
will provide Tenant with a completed IRS Form W-9 upon Tenant' s reasonable request. 

8. Warranty of Title; Subordination. Landlord warrants that ( a) Landlord owns the
Property and the Tower; and ( b) Landlord has full right to make and perform this Lease. This

Lease is and shall be subject to ( i) all mortgages, deeds of trust, and similar security documents
which may now or hereafter constitute a lien upon the Site; ( ii) all ground or underlying leases of
the Property or any portion thereof, and ( iii) all mortgages, deeds of trust and similar security
documents that may now exist encumbering the Property or any portion thereof, and in each
case, to all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof. In

addition, within fifteen ( 15) business days after request by Landlord, Tenant shall execute a
subordination, non -disturbance and attornment agreement reasonably requested by a mortgagee
or beneficiary of a mortgage, deed of trust, or similar security document on Landlord' s or such
mortgagee' s or beneficiary' s then standard recordable form, acknowledging Tenant' s
subordination to such mortgagee' s or beneficiary' s encumbrance of the Site or the Property or
any portion thereof, in exchange for non -disturbance by such mortgagee, beneficiary, or
purchaser and attornment to such mortgagee, beneficiary, or purchaser as contemplated above. 

9. Improvements by Tenant. ( a) Installation and Construction. Tenant shall use the
Site for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and operating a communications facility and
uses incidental thereto, which facility may consist of (without limitation) such air conditioned
buildings or shelters as are necessary to house telecommunications equipment, standby
emergency generator, antennas at a sufficient height, as determined by appurtenances, or a
security fence of chain link or comparable construction that shall be placed around the perimeter
of the Ground Space, ( collectively, the " Communications Facility"). All improvements to the

Site necessary for Tenant's use shall be made at Tenant' s expense. Tenant shall build a " Corral" 
on the Tower which shall have space for two or three additional cellular carriers. Additional

cellular carriers shall negotiate with Landlord on an agreement for ] eased space; Tenant may
charge any additional carrier a proportional cost of " Corral" construction to co -locate on said

premises. Any structure attached to the Tower must be attached in such a way so as to prevent
the cable from contacting the external painted portions of the Tower to minimize corrosion and
to allow for maintenance painting. Tenant will be responsible to repair damaged paint on the
interior and exterior of the Tower which occurs during installation of the " Corral" and shall
warrant and repair any such painting for a period of 5 years. Tenant shall provide Landlord with
a single point of contact for all Tenant' s administration, construction, and construction
sequencing. Any costs associated with said contact shall be bourne by Tenant. ( b) Plans and
Structural Analysis. ( i) Prior to the commencement of any construction or installation on the Site, 
Tenant shall furnish, for review and approval by Landlord, which approval shall not be

Site Nomber: SGKODSOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas



unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed plans and specifications for such construction or
installation of the improvements and Tenant shall not commence the construction or installation
on the Site until such time as Tenant has received written approval of the plans and specifications

from Landlord. Tenant shall be responsible for paying for any such improvements. ( ii) Prior to
the commencement of any construction or installation on the Site, Landlord shall conduct, at
Tenant's sole cost and expense, a structural analysis and wind load analysis of the Tower which
includes any existing loads ( as well as the loads that prior Tenants have the right to place on the
Tower) and the load of Tenant' s antennas, cabling and appurtenances ( the " Structural Analysis"). 
Tenant shall provide a purchase order to Landlord for such Structural Analysis and shall pay
Landlord in advance to order said Structural Analysis, In the event of any subsequent
modification of the Equipment on the Tower, excluding maintenance and repair of the
Equipment as part of Tenant's maintenance practices, then prior to such modification Landlord
may, at its option, conduct, at Tenant' s sole cost and expense, an additional Structural Analysis
of the Tower which includes any existing loads ( as well as the loads that prior Tenants have the
right to place on the Tower) and the load of Tenant' s new antennas, cabling and appurtenances
and Tenant shall provide a purchase order to Landlord for the additional Structural Analysis and

shall pay Landlord in the same manner as provided herein. ( iii) Tenant shall be responsible for
securing all building permits from any and all applicable governmental authorities prior to the
commencement of any construction or installation on the Site. Copies of the building permit
issued to Tenant shall be provided to Landlord. ( iv) Tenant shall use a construction firm

approved by Landlord for any construction activities to be conducted by Tenant on the Property
and the Easement and the installation of Tenant' s Equipment on the Tower. ( v) If in the

Landlord's reasonable judgment, the installation of additional communication equipment

represents a material change in the approved use of the Site, Landlord may renegotiate the Rent
as defined above) due from the Tenant as a condition of such approval. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, however, Tenant shall have the right to conduct any repair or replacement of its
equipment that is of a " like -kind" or substantially similar in nature without first obtaining
Landlord' s approval. Landlord shall select and approve an independent inspector to inspect all

improvements, including but not limited to the construction of the cellular " Corral" and painting
of the tower and said " Corral". All costs for the independent inspector shall by bourne by Tenant. 
vi) If at any time Tenant determines that subsurface boring tests are necessary, Tenant will

obtain Landlord' s prior written approval of such tests. ( c) Equipment. Tenant' s communications

system, including antennas, radio equipment and operating fiequency, cabling and conduits, 
shelter and/ or cabinets, and other personal property owned or operated by Tenant, which Tenant
anticipates shall be located by Tenant on the Site, is more particularly described on Tenant' s co - 
location application, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit " C" (" Equipment"). Landlord

hereby grants Tenant reasonable access, as described in paragraph 2 above, to the Tower and the
Site for the propose of installing and maintaining the Equipment and appurtenances. Except as
otherwise provided, Tenant shall be responsible for all site work to be done on the Site pursuant

to this Lease. Tenant shall provide all materials and shall pay for all labor for the construction, 
installation, operation, maintenance and repair of the Equipment. Tenant shall not construct or
install any equipment or improvements on the Site other than which are described in Exhibit " C" 
or alter the radio frequency or operation of the Equipment without first obtaining the prior
consent of Landlord which consent may be withheld by Landlord if said alteration would result
in interference with Landlords SCADA System. The Equipment shall remain Tenant' s exclusive
personal property throughout the term of this Lease. Tenant shall have the right to remove all

Site Number.5GK0050A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas



Equipment at Tenant' s sole expense on or before the expiration or earlier termination of the

License; provided Tenant repairs any damage to the Property or the Tower caused by such
removal. If Tenant does not remove the Equipment on or prior to the expiration or termination of
this Lease, Tenant shall remove such Equipment within a reasonable period thereafter provided

Tenant pays to Landlord the then existing Base Fee, pro -rated on a monthly basis until such time
as the removal is complete. If Tenant does not remove its Equipment within one hundred twenty

120) days after the expiration or termination of this Lease the Equipment shall be deemed
conclusively and absolutely abandoned by Tenant and Landlord shall have the right to remove
the Equipment at Tenant' s sole expense and dispose of such Equipment in any manner Landlord
so elects, and Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for such expenses upon demand without off -set. 
If Landlord removes the Equipment pursuant to the foregoing sentence, Landlord shall not be
responsible for any damage to the Equipment during or subsequent to the removal thereof. At
Landlord' s option, upon termination of this Lease and upon Landlord' s advance written notice to

Tenant, Tenant will leave the foundation and security fence on the Site to become the property of
Landlord. ( d) Compliance with Governmental Rules. All work performed by Tenant or Tenant' s
employees, contractors or agents shall be in a good and workmanlike manner. Landlord shall be

entitled to require strict compliance with the plans and specifications approved by Landlord
pursuant to paragraph 9( a), including specifications for the grounding of the Equipment. All
construction, installations and operations in connection with this Lease by Tenant shall meet with
all applicable rules and regulations of the FCC, FAA and any other federal agency and all
applicable codes and regulations of the city, county, and state having jurisdiction. Landlord
assumes no responsibility for the licensing, operation or maintenance of the Equipment. Tenant
covenants that the Equipment and the construction, installation, maintenance and operation

thereof shall not damage the Tower or improvements or interfere with the use of the Tower by
Landlord or existing Tenants on the Tower. ( e) Post -Construction Drawings. Tenant shall, within
thirty ( 30) days following the installation of its Equipment, provide Landlord with post - 
construction drawings in accordance with Landlord' s standard specifications for the installation

of the Equipment ( which specifications are subject to change from time to time), satisfactory to
Landlord and verifying the anterma RAD centers. In the event Tenant fails to provide such
drawings within said time period then Landlord has a contractual right as Tenant' s agent for this
limited purpose to order such drawings and Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for Landlord' s

actual costs related thereto within thirty ( 30) days of Landlord' s delivery to Tenant of a written
invoice for such costs. ( f) Completion of Installation. Within thirty ( 30) days following the
completion of installation of the Equipment on the Site, Tenant shall dispose of any remaining
construction material brought onto the Site by Tenant and/ or its employees, agents, consultants
or contractors. In the event Tenant fails to dispose of the remaining construction material from
the Site within such time period, Landlord shall remove said material and Tenant shall reimburse

Landlord for Landlord' s actual costs related thereto within thirty ( 30) days of Landlord' s delivery
to Tenant of a written invoice for such costs. 

10. Utilities. All utility services installed on the Site for the use or benefit of Tenant
shall be made at the sole cost and expense of Tenant and shall be separately metered from
Landlord's utilities. Tenant shall be solely responsible for extending utilities and fiber to the Site
necessary to serve its needs and for the payment of utility charges including connection charges
and security deposits incurred by Tenant. Tenant shall pay the cost of all utility service necessary
to install, maintain and operate the Equipment. Tenant shall obtain and pay the cost of telephone

Site Number.SGK00SOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas



connections, the installation of which shall be in compliance with the procedures for installation
and maintenance of Equipment set forth herein. 

11. Taxes. Tenant shall be responsible for the reporting and payment when due of any
tax directly related to Tenant' s ownership or operation of the Equipment and such reporting and
payment shall be made directly to the appropriate tax authorities. Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord, or its designee, for any increases in real property taxes which are assessed as a direct
result of Tenant' s improvements to the Site. As a condition of Tenant' s obligation to pay such tax
increases, Landlord shall provide to Tenant the documentation from the taxing authority, 
reasonably acceptable to Tenant, indicating the increase is due to Tenant' s improvements. 
Landlord hereby grants to Tenant the right to challenge, whether in a Court, Administrative

Proceeding, or other venue, on behalf of Landlord and/ or Tenant, any personal property or real
property tax assessments that may affect Tenant. If Landlord receives notice of any personal
property or real property tax assessment against the Landlord, which may affect Tenant and is
directly attributable to Tenant' s installation, Landlord shall provide timely notice of the
assessment to Tenant sufficient to allow Tenant to consent to or challenge such assessment. 

Further, Landlord shall provide to Tenant any and all documentation associated with the
assessment and shall execute any and all documents reasonably necessary to effectuate the intent
of this Section 11. 

12. Interference. Tenant agrees to install equipment of types and radio frequencies

which will not cause interference to communications operations, including but not limited to
Landlord' s SCADA System, being conducted from the Property or the Tower by Landlord or
other occupants of the Property or the Tower which are in place as of the Commencement Date
including permitted modifications to the communications operations of third parties who, by the

terms of pre- existing agreements have the right to modify their communication operations), 
which occupants are entitled to interference protection under FCC rules and regulations. Tenant

also covenants that the Equipment installed by Tenant shall comply with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws, ordinances and regulations including but not limited to those regulations
promulgated by the FCC. In the event the Equipment causes such interference, Tenant will take
any steps necessary to correct and eliminate the interference. If such interference cannot be
eliminated within forty- eight ( 48) hours after receipt by Tenant of notice from Landlord
describing the existence of the interference, Tenant shall temporarily disconnect the electric
power and shut down the Equipment ( except for intermittent operation for the purpose of testing, 
after performing maintenance, repair, modification, replacement, or other action taken for the

purpose of correcting such interference) until such interference is corrected. If such interference
is not corrected within thirty ( 30) days after receipt by Tenant of such prior written notice from
Landlord of the existence of interference, Landlord may eliminate or remedy such interference at
Tenant' s cost and expense, including termination of the Lease. 

13. Maintenance and Repairs. ( a) Tenant shall perform all repairs necessary or
appropriate to the Equipment on or about the Site or located on any appurtenant rights- of-way or
access to the Site in good and tenable condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted. ( b) Damage

to the Tower or the equipment or improvements of Landlord or others located on the Property or
the Tower, which results from the acts or omissions of Tenant shall be repaired by Tenant at
Tenant' s cost and expense, or at the option of Landlord and with prior written notice to Tenant, 

Site Number:5GK0U50A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank
Market Carolinas



Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the actual reasonable costs incurred as evidenced by
adequate documentation by Landlord in repairing such damage or replacing such equipment or
improvements. ( c) Prior to the painting of the tower or commencement of regularly scheduled
maintenance to the Tower that will require removal or relocation of any of Tenant' s equipment
on the Site, Landlord shall provide Tenant at least one hundred eighty ( 180) days advance notice
to remove antennas, cables and related equipment from the Tower as required to complete

maintenance work. To the extent allowed by law, Landlord shall provide Tenant at least seven
7) days advance notice to remove antennas, cables and related equipment from the Tower as

required to allow Landlord to perform emergency maintenance and repairs or other maintenance
that is not regularly scheduled on the Tower. The removal of said equipment shall be at
Landlord' s sole expense. To the extent permitted by law and subject to the availability of
adequate unused ground space on the Property to allow installation, placement, and use of such a
facility, Tenant shall have the right to install a temporary " Cell on Wheels" (" COW") at a

location on the Property mutually agreed upon by both parties in the event of the Tower removal, 
repair, replacement, maintenance or a catastrophic event. The existing Lease terms and
conditions would be maintained during the COW installation until maintenance or replacement
of the Tower is complete or until Tenant can find an alternative permanent structure. 

Notwithstanding the above, no automatic renewal provision of this Lease, including but not
limited to those expressed in paragraph 6, shall extend the term if either a COW is in use on the
site pursuant to the terms of this section or if the Tower has been removed or destroyed and this
Lease shall expire at the completion of the existing Term. 

14. Tower Marking and Lighting Requirements. Tenant shall be responsible for
compliance with any applicable marking and lighting requirements of the FAA and the FCC and
shall pay the costs and expenses therefore ( including any lighting automated alarm system so
required). Tenant has the responsibility of carrying out the terms of Tenant' s FCC Lease with
respect to tower light observation and notification to the FAA if those requirements imposed on
Tenant are in excess of those required of Landlord. 

15. Bird Control Measures. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge the close proximity of
the Site to Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and agree that in the event that birds begin to roost
or perch upon the Site creating issues for the flights and operations conducted at Seymour
Johnson Air Force Base, that Tenant shall be responsible to purchase three ( 3) bird effigies and

place on the water tank corral as a bird deterrent and will at its sole cost and expense replace as

needed during the duration of the lease. However should a new tenant and or tenants lease space
on the tank it would then be a share cost divided equally among the new tenants. If the parties
are unable to satisfactorily prevent the roosting and/or perching of said birds upon the Corral
Mount, Landlord may in its sole discretion terminate this Lease. 

16. Mechanics' Liens. Tenant shall not permit any mechanics', materiahnen' s, 
contractors' or subcontractors' liens arising from any construction work, repair, restoration or
removal or any other claims or demands to be recorded or enforced against the Site or any pail
thereof. Landlord shall have the right at any tune to post and maintain upon the Site such notices
as may be necessary to protect Landlord against liability for all such liens and encumbrances. 
Tenant shall give Landlord written notice prior to the commencement of any work or the
delivery of any materials connected with such work or construction, repair, restoration, or

Site Number.SGK00SOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas



removal of materials on the Site. Landlord shall assume no liability for the payment of materials
or labor which accrue in the installation of Tenant' s improvements upon the Site and no
mechanics' or materialmen' s lien for Tenant' s improvements shall attach to the interest of
Landlord in the Site. 

17. Indemnification. Landlord and Tenant each indemnifies the other against and
holds the other harmless from any and all costs, demands, damages, suits, expenses, or causes of
action ( including reasonable attorneys fees and court costs) which arise out of the use and/ or

occupancy of the Site by the indemnifying party. This indemnity does not apply to any claims
arising from the negligence or intentional misconduct of the indemnified party. Except for its
own acts of negligence or intentional misconduct, Landlord will have no liability for personal
injury or death, loss of revenue due to discontinuance of operations at the Site, or imperfect

conununications operations experienced by Tenant for any reason. The indemnification
obligations set forth in this paragraph shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this
Lease. 

18. Financing Agreement. Tenant may, upon written notice to Landlord, mortgage or
grant a security interest in the Equipment to any such mortgagees or holders of security interests
including their successors and assigns ( hereinafter collectively referred to as " Secured Parties"). 
No such security interest shall extend in any way to the interests or property of Landlord. 

19. Disclaimer of Warranties. LANDLORD HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS
ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE ASSOCIATED WITH THE SITE OR THE TOWER. TENANT HEREBY
ACCEPTS THE SITE " AS IS". 

20. Environmental Indemnification. ( a) Tenant, its heirs, grantees, successors, and

assigns shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold harmless Landlord from and against any and
all environmental damages, loss, expenses, and costs of responding to, including consulting fees
and reasonable attorneys' fees, or liability caused by activities conducted on the Site by Tenant
and ( i) arising from the presence of any substance, chemical or waste identified as hazardous, 
toxic or dangerous in any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation including petroleum
or hydrocarbon based fuels such as diesel, propane or natural gas ( collectively, " Hazardous
Materials") upon, about or beneath the Site or migrating to or from the Site, or ( ii) arising in any
manner whatsoever out of the violation by Tenant of any environmental requirements pertaining
to the Site and any activities thereon. Tenant covenants that it shall not nor shall Tenant allow its
employees, agents or independent contractors to use, treat, store or dispose of any Hazardous
Materials on the Site or the Property ( except use is permitted for those generally used by telecom
companies and in compliance with the law). ( b) Landlord acquired the Property by deed on May
20, 1960 and to its knowledge has not introduced any hazardous substances to the Property
during Landlord' s ownership that has resulted in any environmental contamination of the Parcel. 
Landlord is unaware of any investigation, inquiry, or directive of any regulatory body related to
the use of hazardous substances on or around the Property during its period of ownership of the
Property. Landlord has allowed Tenant to conduct a Phase I environmental assessment of the
Property, Tenant has completed such assessment, and Tenant enters into this Lease with the
knowledge and understanding of any findings from such assessment. The indemnification

Site NumbeC5GK0050A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank
Market: Carolinas



obligations set forth in this paragraph shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this
Lease. 

21. Insurance. ( a) Tenant shall cavy during the term of this Lease and until all
Equipment is removed from the Site, at Tenant's own cost and expense, the following insurance: 
i) Special Form Causes of Loss with Replacement Value coverage of Tenant' s Equipment and

its personal property located on the Property; ( ii) commercial general liability insurance with a
Commercial General Liability Endorsement having a minimum limit of liability of Five Million
Dollars ($ 5, 000, 000) per occurrence, with a combined limit for bodily injury and/ or property
damage together with an endorsement for contractual liability for any one occurrence such limit
may be satisfied by a combination of primary and umbrella policies; ( iii) Workers' Compensation
Insurance statutory limits and in accordance with applicable state law; ( iv) Vehicle Liability
Insurance for owned, non -owned and hired vehicles, with a combined limit of One Million
Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage; and ( v) 
excess/ umbrella, coverage of Three Million Dollars ($ 3, 000, 000). ( b) Tenant shall name

Landlord as an additional insured under Tenant' s liability policy, and Tenant shall agree to give
at least thirty ( 30) days written notice of termination or cancelation of policy to Landlord. A
certificate of such insurance, together with such endorsement as to prior written notice of
termination or cancellation, shall be delivered to Landlord within thirty ( 30) days from the
execution of this Lease and before the expiration of any term of such insurance from an
insurance company authorized to do business in the State of North Carolina. ( c) Landlord agrees
to maintain commercial general liability insurance in amounts deemed reasonably satisfactory to
Landlord and which are in amounts of Two Million Dollars ( 2,000,000.00) which is consistent
with industry practices for the business in which Landlord is engaged. Landlord shall have the
right to self insure, ( d) Tenant and Landlord shall require their respective contractors and
subcontractors to carry workers' compensation insurance and adequate liability insurance in
conformity with the minimum requirements. listed above. 

22. Subrogation. ( a) In General. All insurance policies except workers' compensation
required under this Lease shall contain a waiver of subrogation provision under the terms of
which the insurance carrier waives all of such carrier' s rights to proceed against Landlord and
Tenant. ( b) Mutual Release. Landlord and Tenant each release the other and their respective
representatives fiom any claims by them or any one claiming through or under them by way of
subrogation or otherwise for damage to any person or to the Site and to the fixtures, personal
property, improvements and alterations in or on the Site that are caused by or result from risks
insured against under any insurance policy carried by them and required by this Lease, provided
that such releases shall be effective only if and to the extent that the same do not diminish or
adversely affect the coverage under such insurance policies. 

23. Destruction or Condemnation. ( a) Destruction. In the event the Tower or other
portions of the Site are destroyed or so damaged so as to materially interfere with Tenant' s use
and occupancy thereof, Landlord or Tenant shall be entitled to elect to cancel and terminate this
Lease effective on the date of destruction of that portion of the Site and any unearned Base Fee
paid in advance of such date shall be refunded by Landlord to Tenant within thirty (30) days of
the termination date of this License, Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord may elect to
restore the Site if it can be restored within 90 days, in which case Tenant and Landlord shall

Site Numher:5GKGOSGA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

10



remain bound hereby but Tenant shall be entitled to an abatement of Base Fee during the loss of
use. ( b) Condemnation. If the whole or any substantial pail of the Site shall be taken by any
public authority under the power of eminent domain so as to materially interfere with Tenant's
use and occupancy thereof, then this Lease shall cease on the part so taken on the date of

possession by such authority of that part and Landlord or Tenant shall have the right to terminate
this Lease and any unearned Base Fee paid in advance of such termination shall be refunded by
Landlord to Tenant within thirty ( 30) days following the termination of this License. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord may elect to rebuild the Tower on an alternate location
or property owned or leased by Landlord approved by Tenant in which case Tenant and Landlord
shall remain bound hereby but Tenant shall be entitled to an abatement of Base Fee during the
loss of use. Upon such relocation of the Tower, the Property covered herein shall be the new
Tower and the new ground area on which the new Tower sits and this Lease shall be amended

accordingly to clarify the rights of Landlord and Tenant to the new Tower. 

24. Default By Tenant. The occurrence of any of the following instances shall be
considered to be a default or a breach of this Lease by Tenant: ( i) any failure of Tenant to pay the
Base Fee or any other charge for which Tenant has the responsibility of payment under this
Lease within thirty ( 30) days of the date following written notice to Tenant from Landlord, or its
designee, of such delinquency. 

ii) any failure of Tenant to perform or observe any term, covenant, provision or conditions
of this Lease which failure is not corrected or cured by Tenant within thirty ( 30) days of
receipt by Tenant of written notice fiom Landlord of the existence of such a default; except
such thirty (30) day cure period shall be extended as reasonably necessary to permit Tenant
to complete a cure so long as Tenant commences the cure within such thirty (30) day cure
period and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues and completes such cure; ( iii) 
failure of Tenant to eliminate interference problems as set forth in paragraph 12; ( iv) 
Abandonment of the Site (" Abandonment" being defined as Tenant not using the Site for
sixty ( 60) consecutive days); ( v) Tenant shall become bankrupt, insolvent or file a voluntary
petition in bankruptcy, have an involuntary petition in bankruptcy filed against Tenant
which cannot be dismissed by Tenant within sixty ( 60) days of the date of the filing of the
involuntary petition, file for reorganization or arrange for the appointment of a receiver or
trustee in bankruptcy or reorganization of all or a substantial portion of Tenant' s assets, or
Tenant makes an assignment for such purposes for the benefit of creditors; ( vi) this Lease
or Tenant' s interest herein or Tenant' s interest in the Site are executed upon or attached; or

vii) the imposition of any lien on the Equipment except as may be expressly authorized by
this Lease, or an attempt by Tenant or anyone claiming through Tenant to encumber
Landlord' s interest in the Tower or the Property and the same shall not be dismissed or
otherwise removed within ten ( 10) business days. 

Default By Landlord If Landlord fails to comply with any non -monetary provision of this
Lease, then Tenant shall serve written notice of such failure upon the defaulting party, 
whereupon a grace period of thirty ( 30) days shall commence to run during which the
Landlord shall undertake and diligently pursue a cure of such failure at its sole cost and
expense. Such grace period shall automatically be extended for an additional thirty ( 30) 
days, provided the defaulting party makes a good faith showing that efforts toward a cure

Site NumberSGK00SOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

11



are continuing. This Section shall not apply in the case of interference, which instead shall
require immediate and effective curative action in accordance with Section 12 hereof. 

25. Remedies. In the event of a default by Tenant under the terms of paragraph 24 of
this Lease and after the Tenant' s failure to cure such default within the time, if such cure period

is provided, then Landlord may, in addition to all other rights or remedies Landlord may have
hereunder at law or in equity, ( a) terminate this Lease by giving written notice to the Tenant
stating the date upon which such termination shall be effective, accelerating and declaring to be
immediately due and payable the then present value of all Base Fees which would have

otherwise been due Landlord absent a breach of the Lease by Tenant and ( b) terminate electrical
power to the Equipment at Tenant' s expense. If Tenant does not remove said equipment within

one hundred twenty ( 120) days of said termination, Landlord may remove the Equipment
without being deemed liable for trespass or conversion and store the same at Tenant' s sole cost
and expense for a period of thirty ( 30) days after which the Equipment will be deemed
abandoned if not claimed by Tenant. Tenant shall not be permitted to claim such Equipment until
Landlord had been reimbursed for the cost of removal. 

26. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications shall be in
writing and are effective three ( 3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, certified and postage paid, 

or upon receipt if personally delivered or sent by next -business -day delivery via a nationally
recognized overnight courier to the addresses set forth below. Landlord or Tenant may from. 
time to time designate any other address for this purpose by providing written notice to the other
party. 
Landlord: Tenant: 

City of Goldsboro T -Mobile USA, Inc. 

City Manager' s Office 12920 SE 38th Street

Attn: Randy Guthrie, Assistant City Bellevue, WA 98006
Manager Attn: Lease Compliance/ Site No. 

P. O. Drawer A 5GK0050A

Goldsboro, N. C. 27533

With a Copy to: 
City of Goldsboro
Public Utilities Department

P. O. Drawer A

Goldsboro, N.C. 27533

Send Payments to: 

City of Goldsboro
Attn: Finance Department

P. O. Drawer 10809

Goldsboro, N.C. 27533

Site NumbeC5GK00SOA
Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

12



Rejection or refusal to accept delivery of any notice, or the inability to deliver any notice because
of a changed address of which no notice was given, shall be deemed to be receipt of any such
notice. 

27. Emissions. If antenna power output (" RF Emissions") are presently or hereafter
become subject to any restrictions imposed by the FCC or other governmental agency for RF
Emissions standards on Maximum Permissible Exposure (" MPE") limits, or if the Tower
otherwise become subject to federal, state or Iocal rules, regulations, restrictions or ordinances, 

Tenant shall comply with Landlord' s reasonable requests for modifications to Tenant' s
Equipment which are reasonably necessary for Landlord to comply with such limits, rules, 
regulations, restrictions or ordinances and Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
cause all other Tenants of the Tower to promptly comply. If Landlord requires an engineering
evaluation or other power density study be performed to evaluate RF Emissions compliance with
MPE limits, then all reasonable costs of such an evaluation or study shall be paid proportionately
by Tenant and all other Tenants of the Tower within thirty ( 30) days of Landlord's request
therefore. If said study or a study sponsored by any governmental agency indicates that RF
Emissions at the Property do not comply with MPE limits, then Tenant and Landlord, each for
itself, shall immediately take any and all steps necessary to ensure that it is individually in
compliance with such limits, up to and including cessation of operation, Lentil a maintenance
program or other mitigating measures can be implemented to comply with MPE and in addition, 
Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause all other Tenants of the Tower to
take similar steps necessary to ensure that they are individually in compliance with such limits. 

28. Relocation of Tower. Landlord may, at its election, relocate the Tower to an
alternative location or property owned or leased by Landlord. Such location will ( i) be at
Landlord' s sole cost, ( ii) not result in an interruption of Tenant's communications services; and

iii) not impair, or in any manner alter, the quality of communications service provided by
Tenant on and from the Property. Upon such relocation, the Site covered herein shall be the new
Tower and the new ground area on which the new Tower sits. At the request of either party, 
Landlord and Tenant shall enter into an amendment of this Lease, to clarify the rights of
Landlord and Tenant to the new Tower. 

29. Entire Agreement. This Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties

hereto and supersedes all previous negotiations leading thereto. This Lease may be modified only
by an agreement in writing executed by Landlord and Tenant. 

30. Successors and Assigns. This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the legal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns of Landlord and Tenant. This Lease

may only be sold, assigned or transferred at any time by Tenant to Tenant' s parent company or
any affiliate or subsidiary of Tenant or its parent company or to any successor entity with or into
which Tenant or parent company merges by operation of law or otherwise. Otherwise, Tenant
may assign all or a portion of its rights, title or interests hereunder only upon Landlord's prior
written consent. Any purported assignment by Tenant in violation of the terms of this Lease shall
be void. Tenant may not sublease all or any part of the Site without Landlord' s prior written

Site Number: SGK0GSOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

Fit] 



consent. Landlord may assign its rights hereunder to any party agreeing to be bound and subject
to the terms ofthis License. 

31. Limitation of Parties' Liability. Unless otherwise provided herein, neither
Landlord nor Tenant shall be responsible for any incidental or consequential damages incurred
resulting from ( i) Tenant' s use or Tenant' s inability to use the Site, or from (ii) damage to the
other' s equipment. 

32. Rules. Landlord may, from time to time, establish reasonable non- discriminatory
rules relating to the Site. Tenant agrees to comply with such rules after being given a copy. Such
rules shall not impede Tenant's access rights or operations described elsewhere in this Lease. 

33. Miscellaneous. ( a) This Lease shall be deemed executed in the State of North

Carolina regardless of the actual place of signature or the actual place of performance. This

Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North
Carolina and any suit to enforce rights under this Lease shall be tried in the State Courts located
in Wayne County, North Carolina. ( b) If any provision of this Lease is invalid or unenforceable
with respect to any party, the remainder of this Lease will not be affected and each provision of
this Lease shall be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted by law. ( c) The prevailing
party in any action or proceeding to enforce the terms of this Lease is entitled to receive its
reasonable attorneys' fees and other reasonable expenses from the non -prevailing party. ( d) 
Failure or delay on the part of either party to exercise any right, power or privilege hereunder
will not operate as a waiver thereof and waiver of a breach of any provision hereof under any
circumstances will not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach. ( e) Each party executing
this Lease acknowledges that it has full power and authority to do so and that the person
executing on its behalf has the authority to bind the party. ( f) This Lease shall become valid and
binding only upon Landlord' s execution by its duly authorized representative. ( g) Landlord
reserves the right to survey the Easement and/ or the Property or portion thereof, and the legal
description of the Easement and/ or Property on the survey obtained by Landlord shall then
become Exhibit " D", after approval by Tenant which shall be attached hereto and made a part
hereof, and shall control in the event of discrepancies between it and Exhibit " A" and/ or Exhibit

B". ( h) The headings, captions and numbers in this Lease are solely for convenience and shall
not be considered in construing or interpreting any provision in this Lease. ( i) Wherever
appropriate in this Lease, personal pronouns shall be deemed to include other genders and the

singular to include the plural, if applicable. ( j) This Lease may be executed in several
counterparts each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute the same

agreement. 

34. Memorandum/ Short Form Lease. At the request of the Tenant, and at the sole

expense of Tenant, Landlord agrees to execute a memorandum or short form of this Lease, in

recordable form acceptable to Tenant, setting forth a description of the Site, the Term of this
Lease and other information desired by Tenant for the purpose of giving public notice thereof to
third parties. 

Site NuMber: SGKG" SGA

Slte Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market CaroHnas

14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Landlord and Tenant have executed this Water Tower
Attachment Lease as of the date and year written below. 

LANDLORD: City of Goldsboro, a North
Carolina Municipal Corporation

By: vVl !/' 

Printed: Tri J SJ

Date: l - JV- 17

TENANT: T -Mobile South LLC, a

Delaware limited liability co mpany

By: 

Printed: Todd Wheeler, Area Director, 

Network Engineering8 Opera ' ons

Date: t V 3 D V

Mobile Legal Approval By, 

itrument has been greauditcd in in
required by the Local Government

d Fiscal Control Act." 
signature of FinanceOfficer) 

Site Number:SGK0050A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

15



The following exhibits and schedule are attached hereto and incorporated herein: 

Exhibit " A" Area Owned by Landlord

Exhibit " A-1" Site Layout Plan and Tower Elevation Drawings

Exhibit " B". Legal Description of Easement ( may be supplied at a later date) 

Exhibit " C". Co -location Application

Site Number:SGK00S0A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

16



Exhibit A

Landlord Property

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Property located in Wayne, NC

BEING a 200' by 420. 19 rectangular tract of land, located in the City of Goldsboro, N. C., bounded on the
North by Holly Street, on the South by Beech Street, on the East by Madison Street and on the West by
Tract " B" as shown on plat recorded in Book 5, Page 175, also on plat recorded in Plat Cabinet D, Slide
75 in the Wayne County Registry. 

AND BEING a portion of the same property conveyed to the City of Goldsboro, a municipal corporation
from Joe A. Parker and wife, Eunice G. Parker by Deed dated April 30, 1924 and recorded May 07, 1924
in Deed Book 169, Page 319. 

Tax Parcel No. 3509752919

Site NumbeC5GK00SOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

17



Exhibit A- 1

Site lay out and Elevation
Page 1 of 3) 

I NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

QU

FNOCLy
StRFFl \ 

PHYLAFAflaACCESS G. VIILRY l R

G

a' NON-£] PIVSNC

f R CO/.% WCILWIK

Z` 

a,U& 

SHEET 1 OF

Site Number: 5GKOOSOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

T .. MOWS.. o

K-] 

SITE PLAN

T -MOBILE SITE [ D: 5CK0050A

TOTALLY COMMITTED
NB+ C PROJECT

671 N MADISON AVENUE

ooRR.. RexrmceRlxo snnnc®, nm. GOLDSBORO, NC27530

WAYNE COUNTY

SHEET 1 OF

Site Number: 5GKOOSOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

T .. MOWS.. o

K-] 



Page 2 of 3) 

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

TOWER EAST ELEVATION

SUBMITTALS C9v_ 
o o® Iln o 0 0I

a
r

T -MOBILE SITE ID: 5GKO050A REV DATE BY A ll

NB+ C PROJECT# 01754 PRELIMINARY 07122118Dk4 T -MOBILE NORTHEAST LLCTOTALLY COMMITTED: 
671 N MADISONAVENUE REVISED D8125H8 OP COORDINATES: 

BVgTVEq ENOINLERINO E6nVICEE, pLLG. GOLDSBORO, NG27530 LAT IM ' 83).' 35. 3835010D

WAYNE COUNTY LOHG( HAD 83):- 77. 089041D0

SHEET 2 OF 3

Site Number. 5GKOD50A

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank
Market: Carolinas

19



Page 3 of 3) 

P_a0_W_5E_D_ T-1IC9_LE__P_PC Aim

IWA W C0. 9r3TE PAD

COMPOUND PLAN

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

7-1

L,140,1 y T -MOBILE SITE ID: SC-AC0050A

6Ub Ml I IALJ

Rev DATE BY
v ® 7(„ Il¶ v v vlbil

TOTALLY COMMITTED
PREVISEDRY 07/ 22/ 16 DM T- A40BILERDRTHEASTLLC

71 MADIS NAVENU671 N MADISONAVENUE Revlse0 D zv1s oP CCK) RDItJATES: 

var.............. a. rvn: u, PLLc. GOLDSBORO, NC27530 LAT( NAD03): 35.3835MOD

WAYNE COUMY LONG ( NAD 83):- 77.% 90410D

SHEET 3 OF 3

Site Numbn; SGKODSOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank

Market: Carolinas

20



Exhibit B

Description of Easements
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ACCESS .& UTILITY EASEMENT

ALL THAT TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY THE FOLLOWING: 

TO FIND THE TRUE POINTOF BEGINNING, COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE PROPERTY OF THE CITY OF
GOLDSBORO, PARCEL ID 3509752919, THENCE FROM SAID NORTHWEST PROPERTY CORNER S71° 34'46" E, 9. 40' TO THE
POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING OF A PROPOSED 20' WIDE ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT; THENCE 571' 34' 46" E, 
20. 00' TO A POINT; THENCE 518° 25' 14" W 26. 00' TO A POINT, THENCE N71° 34' 46" W 20.00' TO A POINT; THENCE
N18° 25' 14" E A DISTANCE OF 26. 00' TO THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 520 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.012
ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 

Site Number. SGK00SOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water Tank
Market: Carolinas

21



EXHIBIT C

COLOCATION APPLICATION
Site Name : Goldsbm' o 11' ater Tflnk
Site Number : SGKOOSO

Site Information

Site Address: 0Beech St( Piu# 3509752919) 
Couu :\{' ane

Lat./ Lo 352300. 65- 775809. 03

Bxtstiu StructureT e: INater Tank Existing Structure Hel t: 136' 

Tenant information

Com an Name: T-A3obfle South LLC

Com Au' Address: 112920 SE 38th Street Bellevue NVA 98006

Antennas

Desired Rad Center( Feet AGL

Sector

142' 

Sector Sector

142' 142' 

Antenna Quantilyl S Proposed and 2 Future 1 Proposed and 2 Future I Proposed and 2 Future
Antenna Alanufactuseir Ericsson Ericsson Ericsson

Antenna Alodel Proposed= KRD901146/ lAir 32

Future= TBD

Proposed= KRD901146/ Mir32
Future = TED

Proposed= YRD901146/ IAir32

Future = TED

Weight ( er Autenaa) 1321 132. 2 132. 2

Antenna Dimensions ( L xN x

D) 

56. 6" x12. 0' X8. 7" 56.6'X12.0" x8. 7" 56. 6' X12A' X8. 7" 

Transmit Frequency QX) 

Receive Frequency

it ofCoax/ Cable Lines 1 1 1

Coax/ CableAlanutaciurer Ericsson aicssoa Ericsson

Coax/ Cable Alodel 6XI2 HCS GANG Hybrid 6x12HCS6AWGHvbrid 6x12 HCS 6AWGHbrid
ComdCable Diameter 15/ 8 198 1518

Equipment Information; Power Requirements
Alanufacturer: Ericssov YAC: 240

Alodel Number: 6102 Phase: Single

Site NumbenSGKOOSOA

Site Name Goldsboro Water7ank
Market: Carolinas

22

































































damages or equitable relief for interference caused by existing or future communications 
equipment or frequencies used on the Tower(s). 

Additionally, notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that should Owner 
determine, in its sole discretion, that the performance of this Agreement interferes with the 
primary function of the Premises or with any other uses of the Premises by Owner or is 
otherwise inconsistent with the best interests of City of Goldsboro, then Owner shall notify 
Licensee and Licensee shall have thirty (30) days to respond to such determination. If the said 
response is not acceptable for any reason in the sole judgment of Owner, then Owner may 
terminate this Agreement, and Licensee must completely vacate the site before the expiration of 
ninety (90) days from the date of notice of Owner’s determination. 

Also, in all matters where Owner’s approval is required, if Owner should determine in its 
reasonable discretion that a possibility or a threat of interference or other disruption of the 
business of City of Goldsboro or other existing licensees exists, Owner shall have the absolute 
right to withhold such approval.  

9. Access to Premises: During the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall be granted 
reasonable access to the Tower(s) for installation, repair, maintenance, removal, replacement, 
and operation of the Equipment installed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. As long as 
Licensee is not in breach of this Agreement, escorted access will be available to Licensee during 
City of Goldsboro’s normal business hours (Monday through Friday, 8:30am until 5:00pm 
except for City of Goldsboro holidays), as well as extended hours in the case of an emergency, 
service outage situation. 

10. Term: The term of this agreement (the “Initial Term”) is    five  (5) years, beginning 
on the date of late signature on this Agreement.  This agreement shall be automatically renewed 
for an additional __five (5) year period, unless Licensee or Owner provides notice of intention 
not to renew not less than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or any 
Renewal Term. 

11. Rent: It is understood that tower space is a requirement in order for Licensee to 
provide service. The Owner agrees that the lease rate for Tower space to Licensee will have a 
monthly payment of: 

Free use of 50 Mbps internet service at each tower location for use as the City sees fit, 
including but not limited to free public Wi-Fi to the community and use by city personnel. 

This is a valuable consideration, and is valid only as long as Licensee is providing free-
to-the-public high-speed Wi-Fi internet service at the base of the tower and parking areas.  

12. Governmental Approval: Licensee’s ability to use the Premises is contingent upon its 
obtaining any and all necessary permits that may be required by the City of Goldsboro. 

13. Maintenance of Tower Facilities: General Tower maintenance (lighting, painting, 
repairing, maintaining, etc.) is the responsibility of Owner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Owner shall have no responsibility for any lighting or Tower modifications which are required 
because of the installation of Equipment by Licensee. The responsibility for maintaining lighting 
upon Licensee’s Equipment or which is required to be installed as a result of the installation of 























L







M





















































































































































City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

January 2022 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater-GEC

10. Parks and Recreation
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

- January information included in February Report

Item N



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
January 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  January 31, 2022 
 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for its regular monthly meeting on January 20th.  

The MCPD Disability Walk Subcommittee met in person on January 11th.   
 

• On January 11th, the Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for its regular monthly 
meeting.  The MLK Planning subcommittee also met on January 11th.  The CCRD hosted the annual MLK Celebration 
(virtually) on January 17th.   
 

• GYC held its regular meeting on January 5th at W.A. Foster Center.   
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. Staff attended a CALM Executive Board meeting on January 6th at the Laughing Owl. 
2. Staff supported the 2022 Citizens Academy sessions on January 13th and January 27th.  
3. By request, Staff met with IT Department for a department budget meeting on January 11th. 
4. By request, Staff attended a GHA Jobs Plus kickoff at Lincoln Holmes Community Center on January 12th. 
5. Staff attended the regular meeting of the JCPC (virtually) on January 14th.  
6. Staff conducted 2 interviews for the position of Community Relations & Development Specialist on January 18th & 
   19th.  
7. Staff attended the regular monthly meeting of CALM on January 25th at WCC. 

 
• Community Relations department did not meet for the month of January.   

 
• Community Development Activities:  

1. Staff met with Procurement Manager, Tim Wood, on January 4th & 25th to finalize the bid package for the Essential 
   Single-Family Disaster Recovery Program and to continue work on the HOME-ARP Consultant RFP package. *Both  
   bids were advertised on January 28th.   
2. Staff attended a virtual HUB training offered by the State of N.C. Dept. of Administration on January 4th.    
3. Staff completed a monitoring telephone consult with YMCA for CDBG-CV funding on January 6th.  
4. Staff completed a documentation review (Wages) for CDBG-CV funding on January 19th.  
5. Staff attended a virtual HUD Cares Act (CDBG-CV) training January 24th-28th.   
6. Staff attended a virtual NCHFA Urgent Repair 2022 Application webinar on January 31st.      
7. Staff engaged in 5 phone/virtual consults with HUD Representative for the month of January.      
8. Staff engaged in 1 phone consult and 1 email consult with NCHFA Case Manager for the month of January. 

 
• The Department received three (3) housing complaints and twenty-four (24) requests for assistance for the month 

of January. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   
 

2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3             
Consumer & Other 24             

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
January 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  January 31, 2022 
 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

Busted Pipe Consulted with and 
referred to Goldsboro 
Housing Authority 

Utilities in Landlord’s 
name and cut off 

-Complaint intake 
completed 
-Referred to 4Day 
Movement for 
temporary shelter 
-Referred to Legal Aid of 
N.C. 

Landlord stealing 
tenant’s electricity 

Scheduled Complaint 
intake / Complainant 
was a no-show 

 
 
 
Assistance with Resources 
 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 8 Referred to Hope 
Restoration 
Rehabilitation Program 

First-Time Homebuyer 9 Provided application 
packet 

Propane Tank 1 Referred to Wayne 
County DSS & Wayne 
County Services on 
Aging 

Rent-Utility-Housing 
Assistance 

3 Provided Community 
Resource List 

Resources for fire victim 1 Provided Community 
Resource List & 
Referred to 4Day 
Movement 

Domestic Violence 
victim in danger 

1 Referred to Wayne 
Uplift Association 

Employment for 
Disabled Citizen 

1 Referred to Wayne 
Opportunity Center 

Total Requests: 24  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
January 2022 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: February 15, 2022 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 6 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or business 
interests regarding downtown. 

• Over the past month, staff visited downtown businesses 18 different times.   
• DGDC Annual Campaign 
• Merchant Planning Session 
• Committee Work Plan Task Assignments 
• RFP Discussions for South Center Street 
• Economic Development Assessment Planning 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• GWTA Concourse Roof Addition Grant Agreement Update 

• NC Main Street Annual Assessment 

• Tiger Grant Reporting 

• S. Center RFP Document Updated  
• Citizens Academy Presentation 

• Continued preparation and restore on the new DGDC office  
• Committee Work Plans completed 

• Departure of Marketing & Administrative Assistant; search began in late January. Interviews in late 
February.  

• Annual evaluations completed 
DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

• Facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings: DGDC Board Meeting (1/11) , DGDC Executive 
Committee Meeting (1/12) ,DGDC Design (1/11), DGDC EV (1/11), DGDC Merchants Committee Meeting (1/10), 
and DGDC Promotions Committee Meeting (1/11).   

• Band solicitation began for 2022 Center Street Jam series 
• Marketing schedule discussions for 2022 events, tourism and social media 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• LFNC Planning, including next steps for economic development plan & RFP development for 400 block of S. 

Center. 
• Website redesign for smooth integration of businesses and properties.  
• Rehab development project – due for completion in March/April. Communicating about availability.  
• Preparing for the NC Main Street Conference, being held virtually, March 8-10. 
• Goldsboro Union Station Adaptive Reuse – soliciting appraisals.  

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased  
Other 

• The LW opened at 104 E Mulberry St 
• Church will open February 18 at 110 W Walnut St 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 13,398  
• Jay’s Downtown to re-open soon 



1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
January 2022 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.  
Date Prepared:  3-10-22 

Stoney Creek Greenway 
• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600

linear feet; 
• Staff submitted final plans and specifications for NCDOT approval.

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Project is complete with the exception of receiving final pay application from the contractor.

2021 Street Resurfacing 
• The resurfacing project is complete with the exception of receiving final pay application from the

contractor. 

2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002 
• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash

Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street; 
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital 
campus; 

• Project is substantially complete;
• Staff working with contractor on final payment.

Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk 
• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to

Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street; 
• Construction plans are 90% complete;
• This project is temporarily on hold.

2019 Water Improvements Project 
• The Wooten Company engineering agreement provides services for preliminary engineering report

and environmental report for substandard City of Goldsboro water lines; 
• PER/EID Report approved by DWI;
• Staff coordinating with DWI to move project from loan to grant status.

Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 
• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering

report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 
• PER/EID Report submitted to DWI for review and approval.
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle Plant Expansion Project.

Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections  
• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date;
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections were completed for January and February 2022.

Phase III Wastewater System Improvements 
• Staff is coordinating application to secure grant funding, preparation of design and permits.



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
JANUARY 2022 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: March 8, 2022 
 

 

FY 20-21
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues December-20 Adjusted Budget December-21 Collected
General Fund 21,198,036$    45,835,802$        26,348,096$    57.48%
Utility Fund 9,309,651        20,739,218          10,525,735      50.75%
Downtown District Fund 60,201             95,174                 63,504             66.72%
Occupancy Tax Fund 469,947           1,139,668            573,083           50.29%
Stormwater Fund 772,041           1,576,200            1,078,316        68.41%
     Total 31,809,876$    69,386,062$        38,588,734$    55.61%

Expenditures
General Fund 18,959,347$    45,835,802$        20,165,280$    43.99%
Utility Fund 6,615,655        20,739,218 6,043,377 29.14%
Downtown District Fund 14,130             95,174 52,933             55.62%
Occupancy Tax Fund 232,592           1,139,668 329,738 28.93%
Stormwater Fund 479,891           1,576,200 675,668 42.87%
     Total 26,301,615$    69,386,062$        27,266,996$    39.30%

FY 20-21
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

December-20 Adjusted Budget December-21 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 12,812,430$    18,876,693$        13,838,466$    73.31%
Charges for Services 12,013,234      23,836,557          13,120,767      55.04%
Revenue Other Agencies 4,602,019        19,483,742          5,318,059        27.29%
Other Revenues 858,714           3,282,836            4,707,523        143.40%
Fund Balance -                   698,394               -                   0.00%
Shared Services 1,523,479        3,207,840            1,603,920        50.00%
     Total 31,809,876$    69,386,062$        38,588,734$    55.61%

Expenditures
Labor 14,887,898$    32,064,318$        14,895,243$    46.45%
Non-Labor 11,413,717      37,321,744          12,371,753      33.15%
     Total 26,301,615$    69,386,062$        27,266,996$    39.30%

FY 20-21 Actual Total 
Collections Actual December-21 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 44,690$           448$                     4,146$             
Surplus 58,361$           48,162$               52,153$           

FY 21-22

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 21-22

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



 

 
 
 
 

1 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 

Total Incidents: 216 216 216

Structure Fires: 5 5 5

EMS Calls: 79 79 79

Vehicle  Accidents: 22 22 22

Fire Alarms: 44 44 44

O ther: 66 66 66

Training Hours: 2709 2709 2709

Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 0

Inspections: 132 132 132

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 

Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 265 237 232 2781

Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6 2 7 6 5 55

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 82 88 89 1069

Vehicle  Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 40 33 35 422

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 65 38 46 554

O ther: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 71 72 57 681

Training Hours: 3006 3155 3010 2730 2029 1894 1633 1833 1600 1923 1591 1075 2123 25479

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2 1 2 24

Inspections: 121 157 217 172 180 237 194 204 179 160 155 109 174 2085

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
January 2022 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien 
Date Prepared: February 4, 2022 

 The cause of fire incidents was determined 75% of the time. 25% of fire incidents were 
classified as undetermined or still under investigation.  
 

 The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:44.  
 

 The full response within 8 minutes occurred 96.5% of all calls.  
 

 81% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days.  
 

 There were 1 Civilian injury, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service 
deaths.  

 
 The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.  

 
 Fire prevention and community service activities including: Car Seat Safety Checks with 

Safe Kids of Wayne County, Smoke Detector Installations, and Birthday Parades. January 
and February consists of EMT Recertification Class. Personnel are required to obtain 28 hrs.  

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 

 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
January 2022 
Date Prepared:  February 11, 2022    
 
 
Human Resources  

• HR staff provided assistance to the Fire Department regarding the reclassification of Lieutenants to 
Fire Captains.  Provided guidance and assistance to complete salary adjustment based on 2 & 3 Tier 
recommendation from salary study for existing captains. 

• HR Staff provided assistance to the Paramount to reclassify position. 
• HR Staff has completed audit of 2021 Annual Performance Evaluations.  We are currently following 

up with employees and management team to finalize these missing evaluations. 
• HR staff distributed the Employee Appreciation Gifts to staff to the various departments. 

 
Safety   

• January City Hall Fire Extinguisher / Defibrillator inspections 
• Developing special 30-minute trainings for departments. Topics are all OSHA Mandatory 
• January 26 – Safety and Accident Review Committee meeting.  Committee investigated five 

accidents. 
• January 21 – Safety training at Park Maintenance Facility. 22 employees attended training. 
• Completed 300 and 300A logs to be posted in City Facilities 
• Completed OSHA award applications for all departments. 
• Scheduled a driving class for February 18 
• Meeting with Doug McGrath concerning the North Carolina Freedom Festival Concerts. 
• Confirmed Training days for PW Distribution and Collection Division and Water Facility 
• Field Safety with private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  Health and Safety review sessions with Safety Officer regarding health beat/training sessions.  
There were 201 clinic visits this month. There were 0 random Non-DOT drug screens, 0 random DOT and 
0 breathalyzer (all negative) and 1 DOT post-accident drug screen this month.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423            423 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116            116 

Total Employees 539            539 
Male  411            411 
Female 128            128 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hispanic or 
Latino) 

321            321 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195            195 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18            18 

Ethnicity – Asian 1            1 
Ethnicity – Other 4            4 
Vacancies  24            24 
Applications 308            308 

Applicant Notices 141            141 
New Hires  6            6 
Promotions 3            3 
Resignations 6            6 
Retirements  2            2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2            2 

Turnover Rate  2.4%            1.5% 
Vehicle Accidents 5            5 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 
 

           0 

FFCRA Leave  76            76 

Telework 11            11 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 
 
 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total Employment 569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 

 
537 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27 24 20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173 131 203 
Applicant Notices 214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 

 
1 132 

 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1 9 3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3 4 5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 .27 
Turnover Rate  .18% .88

% 
.89% .53

% 
1.44

% 
1.08% 1.09

% 
1.45 1.10 1.49 .19 

 
.74 

 
.94% 

Vehicle Accidents 2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

2 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2 5 9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 17 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
January 2022 
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: February 07, 2022 
 

• Completed Yearly Preventive Maintenance on Server Room UPS. 
• Completed network, audio and security rough-in for new DGDC building. 
• Migrated three lift stations to new service providers. 
• Completed on-site assessment for Public Utilities Cityworks project. 
• Updated Banner servers. 
• Coordinated repairs for IT Fiber Cut on Berkeley. 
• Worked with Security Central, Brady, and Carolina Phone and Alarm on Evidence room security 

alarm to assess the issue and get support onsite. 
• Completed IT Budget Meetings for 6 departments 
• Configured streaming ability for Paramount Events. 
• Replaced fiber SFP for Modular Unit at Public Works. 
• Resolved SCADA PC software issues 
• Fixed Getac In-Car Camera issue. 
• Moved PRI service to new provider at City Hall and GPD. 
• Setup Willowdale Cemetery on City VoIP Phones. 
• Completed GPD Promo Video. 
• Migrated Project Management to the Monday.com. 
• Upgraded Fiber Link for WRF & Replaced Lab PC at WRF; Replaced UPS at WTP. 

 
2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379            379 379 

Tickets 
Closed 

310            310 310 

Open  
Tickets 

474              

 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439 348 280 
 

475 5,698 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388 306 327 471 5,651 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

452 405 414  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Jan 2022 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 02/04/22 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for January totaled $3,903,345.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $38,502.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,600 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,630. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $900. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 460 inspections for the month.  During the month of January, eight (8) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 258 permits were issued for the month.    Thirty-eight (38) plan reviews 
were completed for January. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1
Residential $ (K) $813
Misc $ (M) $1.8
Permit Fee $ (K) $39
Inspections 460
Permits Issued 258
Plan Reviews 38

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $6.5 $4.8 $7.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $4.7 $2.9 $5.2
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.7M $428 $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $1.8 $2.0 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $28 $24 $33.1
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 529 583 522
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 262 242 289
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 93 26 58



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT & GEC 
January 2022 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared:  2/14/2022 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
• January capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• January activity included 4 rental/use days, including 4 public performances. 
• January COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes: 6 days, 4 public perfs. 
• Repairs and Maintenance works in progress:  

Sound repairs (Foundation funded), awning replacement (Foundation split), Roof (under review) 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

Expenses –$69,919:   Labor - $17,234 / Operations – $10,406 /Artist&Renter Payout – $42,279 
Revenues - $67,668:      Tickets -$44,013 / Rentals- $22,384 / Concession- $1271  
 

  21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average 

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919           $406,992 $58,142 

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668           $239,947 $34,278 

Grants $0 $0 $76,235 $145,036 $110,636 $5,250 $0           $337,157   

  20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average 

Exp $31,420 $29,780 $18,774 $23,883 $31,146 $49,123 $36,588 $26,876 $44,093 $52,183 $42,371 $91,817 $478,053 $39,838 

Rev $1,218 <$633> $1,625 $635 $1,508 $2,260 $15,982 $4,697 $5,712 $8,874 $58,020 $69,591 $169,509 $14,126 

 --------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 
• Transition from Paramount to GGC oversight of operation underway. 
• January capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• January activity consisted of 3 event rental days, including 0 non-revenue City events. 
• January cancellations/postponements due to COVID-19 & weather included 5 rental days. 
• Repairs and Maintenance in progress or under consideration:  

Landscaping, tree-trimming, and front garden improvements. Parking lot lighting improvements. 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
Expenses – $12,663: Labor - $7,962 (includes vacation payout) / Operational – $4701 
Revenues – $8047:            Rental Bldg. - $5620 / Rental Amenities - $364 / F&B – $2063 
City Use – $0 Value of Non-revenue City use of facility - $0 
  21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 

Total Average 

Exp $4,602 $10,442 $8,520 $15,505 $10,679 $11,547 $12,663           $73,958 $10,565 

Rev $0 $5,673 $6,192 $9,203 $11,925 $4,331 $8,047           $45,371 $6,482 

City $2,400 $0 $2,205 $4,550 $775 $3,775 $0           $13,705 $1,958 

  20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 
Total Average 

Exp $12,499 $13,295 $16,383 $7,931 $6,727 $14,807 $8,153 $11,245 $13,874 $7,339 $9,469 $14,556 $136,278 $11,356 

Rev $0 <$3,694> $541 $6,894 $6,122 $12,067 <$1,732> $4,695 $5,778 $3,737 $5,168 $3,765 $43,941 $3,662 

City $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,925 $850 $0 $0 $775 $775 $750 $1,250 $6,325 $527 

  



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
January - 2022 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 02/03/2022 

 
 
 

• Winter Youth Basketball Season is underway – 41 teams 
 

• Indoor Soccer program for youth and adults is underway at WA Foster Center 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff started the process of removing the lights and 
decorations from Herman Park 
 

• Staff were prepared for the winter weather that occurred this month; Park 
Maintenance Staff had the sidewalks on Center Street cleared in no time 
 

• Budget prep for FY23 has begun 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean three (3) park restrooms and the 
restrooms at the HUB daily; the other older park restrooms have been 
closed/winterized as they were not built to be open during the winter months 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now 
reflect ALL STAFF associated with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, 
Part-time staff and Seasonal staff 

 



 

 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $1,910            $1,910 

Rental Revenue  $735            $735 

Facility Usage 250            250 

Expenditures $7,135            $7,135 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $895            $895 

Rental Revenue $900            $900 

Facility Usage 1,595            1,595 

Expenditures $18,218            $18,218 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $518            $518 

Expenses $1,848            $1,848 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0            $0 

Rental Revenue $0            $0 

Facility Usage 95            95 

Expenditures $5,865            $5,865 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $105            $105 

Rental Revenue $0            $0 

Facility Usage 232            232 

Expenditures $1,027            $1,027 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $5,555            $5,555 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $0            $0 

Facility Usage 10,673            10,673 

Expenditures $22,418            $22,418 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $16,137            $16,137 

Expenditures $31,184            $31,184 

Rounds of Golf 433            433 

Net ($15,046)            ($15,046) 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0            $0 

Participation $0            $0 

Expenditures $2,013            $2,013 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $26,755            $2,230 

TOTAL EXPENSES $89,708            $7,476 

TOTAL REVENUE $26,755             

TOTAL EXPENSES $89,708             

 
 



 

**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305 $270 $150 $879 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350 $70 $1,035 $657 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358 259 252 272 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812 $5,042 $9,172 $5,039 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85 $50 $120 $400 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750 $3,100 $1,200 $1,058 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983 1,171 1,308 1,199 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173 $16,232 $22,925 $12,510 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705 $548 $578 $568 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0 $0 $1,989 $1,174 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42 $0 $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178 114 136 65 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523 $5,857 $8,599 $2,203 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168 $140 $140 $1,477 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525 268 302 702 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762 $854 $1,992 $6,419 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860 $21,090 $4,110 $7,920 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750 $650 $2,400 $766 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298 30,123 30,123 18,996 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084 $21,726 $21,976 $25,399 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129 $34,965 $53,716 $52,716 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778 $38,890 $43,335 $43,281 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232 2,087 1752 1,960 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351 -3,925 $10,361 $13,895 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475 $0 $0 $358 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50 30 6200 576 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630 $110 $370 $520 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902 $60,925 $63,449 $66,827 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762 $88,711 $110,378 $96,545 

TOTAL REVENUE  $801,924            

TOTAL EXPENSES  $1,158,537            



1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
January 2022 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West         
Date Prepared:  February 4, 2022  

Total Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, 
and Arson) for January 2022 were 136, compared to 143 for January 2021. 

Property with an estimated value of $132,700 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $23,949 was recovered. 

Officers arrested 106 people and issued 251 citations during the month. There were 13 drug-related 
charges.  

There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s). 

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 0 
Rape 1 1 1 
Robbery 1 1 1 
Aggravated Assault 11 11 11 
Breaking & Entering 25 25 25 
Larceny 92 92 92 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 6 
Arson 0 0 0 
TOTALS 136 136 136 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1  1  0  0 6 0.5 
Rape 3 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 12 1.0 
Robbery 7 3 2 1 8 3 5 4 1 5 0 1 40 3.3 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10 24 12 13 15 18 16 9 18 8 164 13.6 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18 30 25 34 21 23 15 12 16 17 256 21.3 
Larceny 88 70 87 83 114 90 90 116 99 96 92 119 1144 95.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8 9 5 7 11 10 7 7 12 7 6 8 97 8.1 
Arson 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124 147 172 151 140 169 144 133 133 154 1722 143.4 

Revenue collected for January 2022 included: 

Police Reports $   50.00 
Fingerprints $   80.00 
Special Events $     00.00 

         Total $ 130.00 



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
January 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: February 14, 2022 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  WTP is fully staffed and all are certified. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing normal since September. 

January through April is our wet season. Higher flows are expected during this time, but currently 
for the month of January unusually low considering the time of year. The average daily flows for 
January is 9.15-MGD. The yearly average flow 9.15-MG. The capacity at the WRF is currently at 
64% for the first month. 

o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117, Little 
Cherry, and New Hope pump station bar screens, impacts from high flows from 2021. 

o Remote communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for 
an upgrade. Failed telemetry radios have delayed emergency response, but no violations 
have occurred during each event. Monies were approved with ARP funds to repair.  

o One uncertified operator is working towards certification.  
o WRF Superintendent position open. 
o One Operator I position open. 

Compost Facility 
• One hundred and sixty-five cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in January 2021. 
• One Compost Operator position open.  
 

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. The results for October are estimated, due to all the results are not in 
for the month. 
 

2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.608             
Sewer** 9.15             

Compost 165             
*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660 5.70 5.64 5.981 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00 6.52 6.69 11.38 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76 472 127 420 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
9.1 9.1
2.3 2.3
33 33.0
20 20.0
2 2.0
12 12.0

41 41.0
32 32.0
0 0.0

295 295.0
49$       49.0

1.1 1.070
20 19.7
0.6 0.568

4 4.0

0 0.0
65 65.0
78.2 78.2
0.14 0.138
0.00 0.000
6 6.0

4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 9 12.1 8.3
8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 4.0
17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 35 24 24.3
18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 9 10 15.8
9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 3 6 4.5
18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 16 24 21.4

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 46 51 45.1
0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 43.6 16.5 70.5
0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 0 0 67.3

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 224 215 258.8
48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       49$       51$       52.0

0.9 0.9 1.1 1.1 0.9 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 20 58.04 61.2
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 1.0 0.6

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 2 3 5.3

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 6 13.8
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 30 45.3
175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 92.9 121.8
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 0.46 2.4
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 0.00 5.4
1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3 3.6

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2022

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
January 2022
Prepared by:  Chad Edge
Date Prepared: 14 February, 2022

2021

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide- Removed Christmas Decorations and lights, 
Grounds focusing on cut backs and right of ways

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 29 after hour calls—total of 45.75 hours; Completed 137 work orders total.

Streets & Stormwater: Call duty responded to 0 after hour calls- total of 0 hours;  Responded to Winter Storm Jasper for a total 
of 104 man-hours and used approximately 13 tons of salt.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
January 2022 
Prepared by: Joanna Ferrin and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared 2/14/22 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of January by the TTO—730 e-

inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in December was $1,617,669, which is up 

36.0% YOY. January revenue not yet released. 

● For the month, TTO Facebook page had 60 page likes and 108 new follows. 

Instagram page had 47 new followers, with 420 overall post interactions 

including likes, comments, saves and shares.  

● Goldsboro-Wayne County was chosen as a finalist for Major League 

Quidditch. A representative attended a site visit led by T&T. They 

visited the Bryan Multi-Sports Complex, Downtown Goldsboro, and the local 

hotels. Goldsboro Parks & Recreation and the Downtown Goldsboro Merchants 

Association assisted the site visit.  

● T&T participated in the City of Goldsboro’s Citizens Academy and gave a 

presentation on the T&T department and the operations of the department. 

 
City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $ $ $ $ $ $656,381 $93,768 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $58,755 103,416 $65,157 $54,670 $61,336 $94,544 $75,710 $93,168 $906,897 $75,575 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

February 2022 
 

1. Community Relations  
2. Downtown Development  
3. Engineering  
4. Finance  
5. Fire 
6. Human Resources  
7. Information Technology  
8. Inspections  
9. Paramount Theater-GEC 

10. Parks and Recreation 
11. Planning  
12. Police  
13. Public Utilities  
14. Public Works   
15. Travel and Tourism  



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
February 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  March 2, 2022 
 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for its regular monthly meeting on February 17th.  

The MCPD Disability Walk Subcommittee met in person on February 8th.   
 

• On February 8th, the Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for its regular monthly 
meeting.  The CCRD Executive Board met on February 25th.    
 

• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) held its regular meeting on February 2nd.   
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. Staff supported the 2022 Citizens Academy sessions on February 3rd, 10th, 17th, and 24th.  
2. By invitation, Staff attended the Restorative Justice Volunteer Appreciation Dinner on February 15th at the Chamber 
    of Commerce. 
3. Staff provided an update on CDBG-CV funding at the City Council Retreat on February 21st. 
4. Staff attended the regular meeting of CALM on February 22nd at WCC.  
5. Staff volunteered for the Restorative Justice/Sentencing Circles (formerly Teen Court) on February 23rd.  
6. By request, Staff met with MLFL, Inc.’s Director, Mr. Thomas Rice on February 25th. 

 
• Community Development Activities:  

1. Staff conducted 3 interviews for the position of Comm. Relations & Development Specialist on February 2nd and 
    3rd.  
2. Staff attended Community Development Academy (UNC-SOG) on February 2nd, 9th, and 23rd.  
3. Staff facilitated a virtual meeting to discuss Broadband for LMI areas using CDBG-CV with IT Director and 
    HUD Representative on February 4th.   
4. Staff attended the monthly Region 10 Continuum of Care meeting virtually on February 9th. 
5. Staff facilitated a documentation review meeting with 4Day Movement for CDBG-CV on February 15th.  
6. Staff submitted Urgent Repair 2019 Program close out reports to the NCHFA on February 16th.  
7. Staff met with Public Information Officer to work on AAP 22-23 Needs Assessment Survey on February 24th. 
8. Staff completed and submitted (electronically & via mail) the 2022 Urgent Repair Application to the North Carolina 
    Housing Finance Agency on February 25th. 
9. Staff engaged in 7 phone/virtual consults with HUD Representative for the month of February.      

     10. Staff engaged in 1 virtual consult with NCHFA Case Manager & Finance Director for the month of February. 
 

• The Department received zero (0) housing complaints and thirty-six (36) requests for assistance for the month of 
February. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0           0 
Consumer & Other 24 36           5 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
February 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  March 3, 2022 
 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

None  
 
 
 
Assistance with Resources 
 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 12 Referred to Hope 
Restoration 
Rehabilitation Program 

First-Time Homebuyer 5 Provided application 
packet 

New business support 1 Referred to Wayne 
County Chamber of 
Commerce 

Rent-Utility-Housing 
Assistance 

12 Provided Community 
Resource List 

Mayor’s Youth Council 1 Informed when 
applications are 
accepted 

Seeking Certificate of 
Satisfaction 

1 Found the public record 
on ROD site and mailed 
a copy of the document  

Seeking grant monies 2 Informed about soon to 
launch COG Public 
Services Grant 
application program & 
Referred to HOPE 
Restoration Program 

Black History Facts 1 Referred to website & 
Public Information 
Officer 

Sewer Issue-Lincoln 
Homes 

1 Referred to HACG 

Total Requests: 36  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
February 2022 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: March 15, 2022 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 15 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interests regarding downtown. 

• Over the past month, staff visited downtown businesses 14 different times.   
• DGDC Annual Campaign – wraps on March 25 
• Committee Work Plan Task Assignments 
• RFP Discussions for South Center Street 
• Economic Development Assessment Planning 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• COG 22/23 FY budget prep & year-end spending planning 

• GWTA Concourse Roof Addition Grant Agreement Update 

• NC Main Street Annual Assessment 

• Tiger Grant Reporting 

• S. Center RFP Document Updated  
• Continued preparation and restoration on the new DGDC office – anticipated completion month, May 

• Completed first, second round interviews for Marketing & Administrative Assistant. Candidate selected. 
• Potential Arts District discussions and site visit 

• Economic Development Assessment work group scheduled to meet in late March 
DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

• Facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings: DGDC Board Meeting (2/16) , DGDC Executive 
Committee Meeting (2/9) ,DGDC Design (2/8), DGDC EV (2/8), DGDC Merchants Committee Meeting (2/7), and 
DGDC Promotions Committee Meeting (2/8)   

• Band solicitation began for 2022 Center Street Jam series. Schedule finalized 
• Share the Love, Shop Local marketing campaign for merchants 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• Litter Sweep planned for April 20th. Beautification project for JC Penney Parking lot planned for March 26th  
• Website redesign for smooth integration of businesses and properties.  
• Rehab development project – due for completion in March/April. Communicating about availability.  
• NC Main Street Conference, being held virtually, March 8-10. 
• Goldsboro Union Station Adaptive Reuse – soliciting appraisals.  
• Grant solicitations for Duke Energy & Wells Fargo 
• Downtown Events in April/May – Greater Goldsboro Road Race, Mayor’s Committee with Disabilities Walk, 

Three Eagles Beer Fest,  
Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 

• Church Spirits & Cocktails opened February 18th at 110 W Walnut St 
• Shopper’s Delight opened at 129 E. Walnut St. 
• Barrister’s Loft AirBnB coming in April 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 13,451  

 



1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
February 2022 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.  
Date Prepared:  3-10-22 

Stoney Creek Greenway 
• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600

linear feet; 
• Staff submitted final plans and specifications for NCDOT approval.

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Project is complete with the exception of receiving final pay application from the contractor.

2021 Street Resurfacing 
• The resurfacing project is complete;
• Final pay application submitted to Finance Department for payment.

2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002 
• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash

Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street; 
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital 
campus; 

• Project is 99% complete;
• Staff working with contractor on final payment.

Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk 
• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to

Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street; 
• Construction plans are 90% complete;
• This project is temporarily on hold.

2019 Water Improvements Project 
• The Wooten Company engineering agreement provides services for preliminary engineering report

and environmental report for substandard City of Goldsboro water lines; 
• PER/EID Report approved by DWI;
• Staff coordinating with DWI to move project from loan to grant status.

Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 
• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering

report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 
• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval;
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle Plant Expansion Project.

Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections  
• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date;
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections were completed for January and February 2022.

Phase III Wastewater System Improvements 
• Staff is coordinating application to secure grant funding, preparation of design, and permits.



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
FEBRUARY 2022 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: March 11, 2022 
 

 

FY 20-21
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues January-21 Adjusted Budget January-22 Collected
General Fund 27,030,591$    45,835,802$        31,805,543$    69.39%
Utility Fund 10,913,817      20,739,218          12,161,285      58.64%
Downtown District Fund 81,804             95,174                 83,237             87.46%
Occupancy Tax Fund 581,598           1,139,668            641,946           56.33%
Stormwater Fund 914,776           1,576,200            1,221,983        77.53%
     Total 39,522,585$    69,386,062$        45,913,994$    66.17%

Expenditures
General Fund 21,854,173$    45,835,802$        23,006,238$    50.19%
Utility Fund 8,134,934        20,739,218 7,555,382 36.43%
Downtown District Fund 17,163             95,174 56,893             59.78%
Occupancy Tax Fund 260,360           1,139,668 453,634 39.80%
Stormwater Fund 566,599           1,576,200 1,403,748 89.06%
     Total 30,833,230$    69,386,062$        32,475,895$    46.80%

FY 20-21
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

January-21 Adjusted Budget January-22 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 16,242,993$    18,876,693$        16,764,930$    88.81%
Charges for Services 14,140,655      23,836,557          15,126,308      63.46%
Revenue Other Agencies 5,462,148        19,483,742          6,334,793        32.51%
Other Revenues 1,391,571        3,282,836            5,282,083        160.90%
Fund Balance -                   698,394               -                   0.00%
Shared Services 2,285,218        3,207,840            2,405,880        75.00%
     Total 39,522,585$    69,386,062$        45,913,994$    66.17%

Expenditures
Labor 17,261,680$    32,064,318$        17,268,507$    53.86%
Non-Labor 13,571,550      37,321,744          15,207,387      40.75%
     Total 30,833,230$    69,386,062$        32,475,895$    46.80%

FY 20-21 Actual Total 
Collections Actual January-22 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 44,690$           -$                      4,146$             
Surplus 58,361$           -$                      52,153$           

FY 21-22

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 21-22

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



 

 
 
 
 

1 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 

Total Incidents: 216 195 206 411

Structure Fires: 5 6 6 11

EMS Calls: 79 78 79 157

Vehicle  Accidents: 22 23 23 45

Fire Alarms: 44 35 40 79

O ther: 66 53 60 119

Training Hours: 2709 2806 2758 5515

Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 0 0

Inspections: 132 123 128 255

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 

Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 265 237 232 2781

Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6 2 7 6 5 55

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 82 88 89 1069

Vehicle  Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 40 33 35 422

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 65 38 46 554

O ther: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 71 72 57 681

Training Hours: 3006 3155 3010 2730 2029 1894 1633 1833 1600 1923 1591 1075 2123 25479

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2 1 2 24

Inspections: 121 157 217 172 180 237 194 204 179 160 155 109 174 2085

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
February 2022 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien 
Date Prepared: March 10, 2022 

 The cause of fire incidents was determined 91.7% of the time. 8.3% of fire incidents were 
classified as undetermined or still under investigation.  
 

 The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:45.  
 

 The full response within 8 minutes occurred 96.2% of all calls.  
 

 95.3% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days.  
 

 There were 1 Civilian injury, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service 
deaths.  

 
 The American Red Cross assisted 3 families due to displacement because of fire damage.  

 
 Fire prevention and community service activities including: Car Seat Safety Checks with 

Safe Kids of Wayne County, Smoke Detector and CO Detector Installations, A Night to Shine 
Parade, Citizens Academy, and Birthday Parades. January and February consists of EMT 
Recertification Class. Personnel are required to obtain 28 hrs.  

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 

 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
February 2022 
Date Prepared:  March 11, 2022    
 
 
Human Resources  

• Prepared and worked with departments regarding Reclassifications and New Positions for the 
upcoming FY22/23 budget. 

• Coordinated evaluators for the upcoming Fire Engineer Promotional Process. 
• Preparing for the upcoming Administrative Professionals Day Luncheon. 
• Preparing for the upcoming New Hire Orientation on March 21, 2022. 
• Processed Reclassification Forms for title changes only for Engineering Department. 
•  Updated Salary Schedule FY21-22 with updated reclassification changes. 
• Reviewed New Hire Practices with police department. 

 
Safety   

• February City Hall Fire Extinguisher / Defibrillator Inspections 
• February 9 – Safety Training at Water Facility 
• February 11 – Safety Training at Public Works 
• February 16 – Safety Training at Compost facility for all Public Utility staff. 
• February 17 – Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. The committee had one case to 

review. Motor vehicle accident  
• February 18 – Defensive Driving course 
• February 23 – Motor vehicle accident involving a city vehicle hitting a fire hydrant. 
• February 28 – Motor vehicle accident backing into vehicle. 
• February 24 – Safety Training for cemetery division. 
• Scheduled trench/excavation training thru Department of Labor free training site. Set for April 5th 

at PW 
• Several teleconference calls with President of North Carolina Freedom Festival concerning the 

May 21 festival. 
• Sprinkler system checks are being done in city facilities 
• Field safety with crews 
• North Carolina Department of Labor elevator inspections are being done in March 2022. 
• Daily office duties 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  Health and Safety review sessions with Safety Officer regarding health beat/training sessions.  
There were 121 clinic visits this month. There were 0 random Non-DOT drug screens, 0 random DOT and 
0 breathalyzer (all negative) and 0 DOT post-accident drug screen this month.   
 
 
 



2 

 
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR AP
R 

MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427           425 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111           114 

Total Employees 539 536           538 
Male  411 412           412 
Female 128 124           126 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hispanic or 
Latino) 

321 324           323 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190           193 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17           18 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1           1 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4           4 
Vacancies  24 25           25 
Applications 308 179           244 

Applicant Notices 141 147           144 
New Hires  6 4           5 
Promotions 3 0           2 
Resignations 6 10           8 
Retirements  2 2           2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1           2 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0%           2.7% 
Vehicle Accidents 5 1           3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 
 

0           0 

FFCRA Leave  76 7           42 

Telework 11 11           11 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total Employment 569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 

 
537 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27 24 20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173 131 203 
Applicant Notices 214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 

 
1 132 

 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1 9 3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3 4 5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 .27 
Turnover Rate  .18% .88

% 
.89% .53

% 
1.44

% 
1.08% 1.09

% 
1.45 1.10 1.49 .19 

 
.74 

 
.94% 

Vehicle Accidents 2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

2 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2 5 9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 17 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
February 2022 
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: March 04, 2022 
 

• Moved PRI service to new provider at City Hall. 
• Moved PRI Service to a new provider at GPD. 
• Setup Willowdale Cemetery on City VoIP Phones. 
• Completed GPD Promo Video. 
• Migrated Project Management to the Monday.com. 
• Upgraded Fiber Link for WRF and replaced Lab PC. 
• Resolved issues with O365 and Exchange Online. 
• Upgraded connection for one lift station. 
• Migrated Engineering to O365 & SharePoint. 
• Completed wireless survey for DGDC. 
• Updated primary SSL Certificate for Exchange Server. 
• Resolved Banner configuration issues. 
• Replaced streaming equipment for Council Meetings. 
• Uploaded video with backup audio from Council Meeting. 
• Replaced Root Certificate on Domain Controller. 
• Attended Cybersecurity webinar given by NRWA. 

 
2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353           347 732 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

          307 614 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523             

 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439 348 280 
 

475 5,698 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388 306 327 471 5,651 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

452 405 414  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Feb 2022 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 03/03/22 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for February totaled $11,070,492.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for 
our local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $42,644.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,660 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $3,130. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,440. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 551 inspections for the month.  During the month of February, six (6) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 281 permits were issued for the month.    Sixty-six  (66) plan reviews were 
completed for February. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $7.5
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $5.6
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $1.9M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.9
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $41
Inspections 460 551 506
Permits Issued 258 281 270
Plan Reviews 38 66 52

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $6.5 $4.8 $7.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $4.7 $2.9 $5.2
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.7M $428 $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $1.8 $2.0 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $28 $24 $33.1
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 529 583 522
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 262 242 289
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 93 26 58



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT & GEC 
February 2022 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 3/14/2022 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
• February capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• February activity included 12 rental/use days, including 2 public performances. 
• February COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 15 days, 7 public perfs. 
• Repairs and Maintenance works in progress:  

Sound repairs (Foundation funded), awning replacement (Foundation split), Roof (under review) 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

Expenses –$27,119:   Labor - $19,278 / Operations – $7,841 /Artist&Renter Payout – $0 
Revenues - $10,947:      Tickets - <$1150> / Rentals- $11,766 / Concession- $331 
 

  
 

--------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 
• Transition from Paramount to GGC oversight of operation underway. 
• February capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• February activity consisted of 7 event rental days, including 3 non-revenue City events. 
• February cancellations/postponements due to COVID-19 & weather included 0 rental days. 
• Repairs and Maintenance in progress or under consideration:  

Landscaping, tree-trimming, and front garden improvements. Parking lot lighting improvements. 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
Expenses – $8556: Labor - $6460 (includes vacation payout) / Operational – $2096 
Revenues – $4597:            Rental Bldg. - $515 / Rental Amenities - $3303 / F&B – $779 
City Use – $4145 Value of Non-revenue City use of facility - $4145 

 

 

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $434,111 $54,264

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $250,894 $31,362

Grants $0 $0 $76,235 $145,036 $110,636 $5,250 $0 $0 $337,157

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $31,420 $29,780 $18,774 $23,883 $31,146 $49,123 $36,588 $26,876 $44,093 $52,183 $42,371 $91,817 $478,053 $39,838

Rev $1,218 <$633> $1,625 $635 $1,508 $2,260 $15,982 $4,697 $5,712 $8,874 $58,020 $69,591 $169,509 $14,126

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $4,602 $10,442 $8,520 $15,505 $10,679 $11,547 $12,663 $8,556 $82,514 $10,314

Rev $0 $5,673 $6,192 $9,203 $11,925 $4,331 $8,047 $4,597 $49,968 $6,246

City $2,400 $0 $2,205 $4,550 $775 $3,775 $0 $4,145 $17,850 $2,231

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $12,499 $13,295 $16,383 $7,931 $6,727 $14,807 $8,153 $11,245 $13,874 $7,339 $9,469 $14,556 $136,278 $11,356

Rev $0 <$3,694> $541 $6,894 $6,122 $12,067 <$1,732> $4,695 $5,778 $3,737 $5,168 $3,765 $43,941 $3,662

City $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,925 $850 $0 $0 $775 $775 $750 $1,250 $6,325 $527



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
February - 2022 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 03/04/2022 

 
 
 

• Spring Youth Sports registration for youth ages 3-14 is happening; spring sports offered include soccer, 
softball, T-ball and baseball 
 

• Winter Youth Basketball is continuing – 41 teams 
 

• Indoor Soccer program for youth and adults at WA Foster Center is ongoing throughout this month 
 

• P&R Director attended the NC Parks & Recreation Directors Conference – she was one of the panelists 
featured 
 

• The miniature train located in Herman Park was put up for sale on GovDeals; the reserve bid was met and 
staff are in the process of scheduling pickup with the new owner 
 

• P&R and Golf Course presented at COG Citizens Academy on February 10th at the Paramount Theatre 
 

• Registration for Wayne County Senior Games started this month and will be held through March 1st; 
adults age 50 or better are eligible to compete in Olympic style activities 
 

• P&R Director presented at City Council Retreat 
 

• Parks and Recreation and Golf Course staff assisted with interviews for the Goldsboro Event Center 
Manager; City Council also approved for the operations of the GEC to be transferred to Golf Course 
 

• Budget Prep for FY23 continues 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean three (3) park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily; 
the other older park restrooms have been closed/winterized as they were not built to be open during the 
winter months 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff and Seasonal staff 

 



 

 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $1,910 $520           $1,215 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475           $1,105 

Facility Usage 250 189           220 

Expenditures $7,135 $5,287           $6,211 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $895 $295           $595 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820           $1,860 

Facility Usage 1,595 1,565           1,580 

Expenditures $18,218 $18,684           $18,451 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $518 $450           $484 

Expenses $1,848 $0           $924 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0           $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0           $0 

Facility Usage 95 119           107 

Expenditures $5,865 $5592           $5,729 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $105 $105           $105 

Rental Revenue $0 $0           $0 

Facility Usage 232 376           304 

Expenditures $1,027 $2,257           $1,642 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $5,555 $16,145           $10,850 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $0 $0           $0 

Facility Usage 10,673 14,935           12,804 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209           $18,814 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $16,137 $33,437           $24,787 

Expenditures $31,184 $36,837           $34,011 

Rounds of Golf 433 1,296           865 

Net ($15,046) ($3,400)           ($9,223) 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0           $0 

Participation $0 0           $0 

Expenditures $2,013 $110           $1,062 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $26,755 $55,247           $6,834 

TOTAL EXPENSES $89,708 $83,976           $14,474 

TOTAL REVENUE $82,002             

TOTAL EXPENSES $173,684             

 
 



 

**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305 $270 $150 $879 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350 $70 $1,035 $657 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358 259 252 272 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812 $5,042 $9,172 $5,039 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85 $50 $120 $400 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750 $3,100 $1,200 $1,058 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983 1,171 1,308 1,199 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173 $16,232 $22,925 $12,510 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705 $548 $578 $568 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0 $0 $1,989 $1,174 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42 $0 $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178 114 136 65 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523 $5,857 $8,599 $2,203 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168 $140 $140 $1,477 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525 268 302 702 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762 $854 $1,992 $6,419 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860 $21,090 $4,110 $7,920 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750 $650 $2,400 $766 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298 30,123 30,123 18,996 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084 $21,726 $21,976 $25,399 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129 $34,965 $53,716 $52,716 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778 $38,890 $43,335 $43,281 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232 2,087 1752 1,960 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351 -3,925 $10,361 $13,895 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475 $0 $0 $358 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50 30 6200 576 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630 $110 $370 $520 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902 $60,925 $63,449 $66,827 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762 $88,711 $110,378 $96,545 

TOTAL REVENUE  $801,924            

TOTAL EXPENSES  $1,158,537            



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
February 2021 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  March 7, 2022 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff is in the process for compliance with the NCGS 
Legislative 160D updates, including updating all copies online and in-office. On-going projects include 
tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related documents and preparation of case 
reports. 

 

  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 0 0
Subdivison 0 0 0 0

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 2 0

Special Use 3 1 4 0
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 1 1 2 0
Staff Review 1 2 3 0

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 73 6

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 148 12

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 367 31

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
2021 

 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 4 4 1 0 1 10 1
Subdivison 6 3 2 0 0 2 13 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 0 3 0 1 3 4 0 2 0 2 2 17 1

Special Use 2 1 0 3 3 1 10 1

Historic District Commission
Commission 

Review
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0

Staff Review 1 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 3 2 11 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 1 36 68 43 33 58 37 35 19 0 330 41

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $1,420.00 $2,430 $2,190 $1,740 $3,025 $1,965 $1,770 $955 -$   $15,670 $1,959

Tagged 
Vehicles

25 15 12 21 23 25 11 24 15 1 0 22 194 16

Illegal Signs 
Removed

52 77 380 36 30 174 147 155 189 222 192 88 1742 145

Bags of Litter 
Picked Up 210 186 231 232 204 206 253 212 261 239 244 216 2694 225

*Adoption of 160D has allowed all Site Plans & Subdivisions to be 
reviewed at staff level no longer needing Planning/City Council 

review. Monthy report updated to reflect current process.

Planning Dept.

Code Enforcement 

*Adoption of 160D changed Conditional Use permits to Special Use 
permits. These were not previously reported. Monthy report 

updated to reflect current process.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
February 2022 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  March 4, 2022  
 
Total Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, 
and Arson) for February 2022 were 129, compared to 112 for February 2021. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $491,838 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $72,008 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 103 people and issued 215 citations during the month. There were 30 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 0 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1                 1 0.5 
Rape 1 2                   3 1.5 
Robbery 1 2                    3 1.5 
Aggravated Assault 11 12                    23 11.5 
Breaking & Entering 25 19                   44 22 
Larceny 92 86                     178 89 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6  6                 12 6 
Arson 0 1                   1 0.5 
TOTALS 136 129                   265 132.5 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1  1  0  0 6 0.5 
Rape 3 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 12 1.0 
Robbery 7 3 2 1 8 3 5 4 1 5 0 1 40 3.3 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10 24 12 13 15 18 16 9 18 8 164 13.6 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18 30 25 34 21 23 15 12 16 17 256 21.3 
Larceny 88 70 87 83 114 90 90 116 99 96 92 119 1144 95.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8 9 5 7 11 10 7 7 12 7 6 8 97 8.1 
Arson 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124 147 172 151 140 169 144 133 133 154 1722 143.4 

 

 
Revenue collected for February 2022 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

 188.00  
 Fingerprints   $         .00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $     25.00  
             Total     $ 213.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
February 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: March 14, 2022 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  WTP is fully staffed and all are certified. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing normal since September 

2021. January through April is our wet season. Higher flows are expected during this time, but 
currently for January, February, and March are unusually low considering the time of year. The 
average daily flows for February is 9.32-MGD. The yearly average flow 9.23-MG. The capacity at 
the WRF is currently at 65% for the first two months 

o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117, Little 
Cherry, and New Hope pump station bar screens, impacts from high flows from 2021. 

o Remote communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for 
an upgrade. Failed telemetry radios have delayed emergency response, but no violations 
have occurred during each event. Monies were approved with ARP funds to repair.  

o One uncertified operator is working towards certification.  
o WRF Superintendent position open. 
o One Operator I position open. 
o One Bio Solids Operator position open. 

Compost Facility 
• Nine hundred and seventy-two cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in February 2021. 
• Dwight Tyndall will be retiring on March 31st.  

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. The results for October are estimated, due to all the results are not in 
for the month. 
 

2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487           5.548 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32           9.23 

Compost 165 972           569 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660 5.70 5.64 5.981 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00 6.52 6.69 11.38 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76 472 127 420 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
9.1 4.7 6.9
2.3 1.9 2.1
33 37 35.0
20 19 19.5
2 2 2.0
12 27 19.5

41 53 47.0
32 15 23.5
0 10 5.0

295 200 247.5
49$       48$       48.5

1.1 0.9 0.990
20 38 29.0
0.6 0.5 0.514

4 5 4.5

0 36 18.0
65 51 58.0
78.2 156.1 117.2
0.14 0.00 0.069
0.00 0.40 0.200
6 2 4.0

4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 9 12.1 8.3
8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 4.0
17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 35 24 24.3
18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 9 10 15.8
9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 3 6 4.5
18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 16 24 21.4

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 46 51 45.1
0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 43.6 16.5 70.5
0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 0 0 67.3

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 224 215 258.8
48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       49$       51$       52.0

0.9 0.9 1.1 1.1 0.9 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 20 58.04 61.2
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 1.0 0.6

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 2 3 5.3

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 6 14 13.8
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 30 74 47.7
175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 92.9 107.1 120.6
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 0.46 0.00 2.2
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 0.00 0.00 5.0
1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3 3 3.6

Public Works Department
February 2022
Prepared by:  Chad Edge
Date Prepared: 14 March, 2022

2021

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2022

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide- Removed lights from all trees thoughout 
Center St; Grounds focusing on cut backs and sidewalks, removing vegetative obstacles from lots to enhance mowing efficiency.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 15 after hour calls—total of 19.25 hours; Completed 118 work orders total.

Streets & Stormwater: Call duty responded to 1 after hour calls- total of 2.5 hours;  Assisted Parks & Rec with hauling dirt to 
Sports Complex for splash pad & pavilion landscaping.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
February 2022 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Joanna Ferrin and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared 3/10/22 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of January by the TTO—578 e-inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in January was $1,476,236, which is up 13.4% YOY. February revenue not yet 

released. 

● For the month, TTO Facebook page had 166 page likes and 175 new follows. Instagram page had 93 new 

followers, with 420 overall post interactions including likes, comments, saves and shares.  

● T&T participated in the City of Goldsboro’s Citizens Academy and gave a presentation on the T&T 

department and the operations of the department. 

●  WRAL Out & About filing for Goldsboro-Wayne County feature for their March 2022 episode. 
Barrique, Holly Grove Farms and Pink Piggy Sweets will be featured.  
 

 

City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $ $ $ $ $708,440 $88,555 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $58,755 103,416 $65,157 $54,670 $61,336 $94,544 $75,710 $93,168 $906,897 $75,575 
 



O



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 — a, q

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK

TO EXECUTE A PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT WITH MOUNT OLIVE

PICKLE COMPANY, INC. 

WHEREAS, the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. has developed plans that
include $ 45, 450, 000 investment and the creation of 167 full- time jobs in the City of
Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the addition of this investment will expand the City' s tax base and
increase ad valorem tax an estimated $ 2, 100, 000 over the first ten -years and create

employment opportunities for the citizens thereof, and

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that a portion of the revenues generated as a
consequence of this business venture be returned to Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. to
pay a portion of the costs of the investment, and that such revenues be designated as an
Economic Development Grant" to Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc., in an amount of
600, 000 over a ten- year period. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro North Carolina, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign a
performance agreement with Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. 

Adopted this the 21
St

day of March, 2022. 

Attested by: 

CL A* 
Laura Getz, City Cler

l 2!! 

David Halm, Mayor

























Item R


	Agenda 03-21-22
	Item A.1 Minutes 2-21-22-2022
	MINUTES OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL RETREAT
	FEBRUARY 21-22, 2022
	UFEBRUARY 21, 2022
	The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held their Annual Retreat on Monday, February 21, 2022 at the Goldsboro Event Center, 1501 South Slocumb Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina with attendance as follows:
	Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones
	Councilman Bill Broadaway (arrived at 9:30)
	Councilwoman Brandi Matthews
	Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV
	Councilman Gene Aycock

	Item A.2 - Minutes 3-1-22
	MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL, WAYNE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AND LOCAL MUNICIAPLITIES
	MARCH 1, 2022
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Joint Meeting with the Wayne County Commissions and local municipalities at the Maxwell Center, 3114 Wayne Memorial Drive, at 12 p.m. on March 1, 2022.
	Present: Mayor David Ham
	Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones
	Councilwoman Brandi Matthews
	Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV
	Councilman Gene Aycock

	Item C - Goldsboro Redistricting Options
	Goldsboro Options 3 21 2022
	Goldsboro City Council�Alternative Redistricting Maps
	Standard Disclaimers
	Criteria followed:
	Additional goals:
	Current Districts
	Current districts’ population deviations
	Why can’t all the districts within the 5% range be left alone?
	How the three options deal with this reality:
	Goldsboro Option A
	Side by side comparison with current map
	Option A – population and deviation
	Characteristics of Alternative A
	Goldsboro Option B
	Side by side comparison with current map
	Option B population and deviation
	Characteristics of Alternative B
	Goldsboro Option C
	Side by side comparison with current map
	Alternative C - population and deviation
	Characteristics of Option C
	Side by side comparison of all 4 maps
	Demographic comparison for all 4 maps
	Next Steps
	Interactive Map
	Questions/Discussion

	Goldsboro map collection
	Goldsboro Redistricting Options

	Item D - Z-1-22
	Item E - Z-2-22
	Item F - Z-3-22
	Item G - Z-4-22
	Item H - 135th
	Item I - Sonoco Agreement
	Agenda Item - Sonoco Supply Agreement 3-21-22
	Resolution - Sonoco Supply Agreement 3-21-22
	Sonoco & COG Supply Agreement - March 2022

	Item J - Water Tank Agreements
	water tower memo_ RES
	T-Mobile - Madison Ave Antenna Upgrades 2022
	T-Mobile Water Tower Lease - 2017
	harris st water tower
	Open Broadband On Water Towers 2020

	Item K - Boards and Commissions
	Item L - Code of Ord Update
	code memo
	Item L-2 - Code of Ordinances March 2022

	Item M-1 - Monthly Departmental Reports - January
	ADP93AE.tmp
	Other


	Item M-2 - Monthly Departmental Reports - February
	Item N - MOP Agenda Item 3-21-22
	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	A. Independent Agreement.  This Agreement and the conditions hereof only relate to the provisions and grants from the County and City set forth herein and do not limit or affect other commitments made by the County and City, the State of North Carolin...
	WAYNE COUNTY      Attest:
	CITY OF GOLDSBORO     Attest:
	Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc.    Attest:


	Item O - Linwood Smith Retirement RES
	Item P - Dwight Tyndall Retirement RES
	Item Q - Child Abuse Proclamation
	Item A.2 Exhibit A Viable Utility Presentation.pdf
	Department of Environmental Quality
	Overview
	The Viable Utility Reserve (VUR)
	Master Plan – Definition of Viability
	Viable Utility Program
	Distressed Criteria
	History of the VUR Program
	Requirements for LGUs �Designated as Distressed
	Initial Education
	Initial Education Options
	Continuing Education
	Asset Inventory & Assessment (AIA)
	Merger/Regionalization �Feasibility Studies (MRF)
	Rate Studies
	American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
	Slide Number 16
	Plan for VUR ARPA Funds
	Wayne County Partnership
	Entities Involved
	Current Projects
	Status Updates
	Next Steps
	Thank you!� Viable Utility Reserve Staff: 
	Thank you! Any Questions?

	ADP3F00.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Stantec Findings and Recommendations Dec 6, 2021
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Regional Monthly Residential Bill Comparison @ 5,000 gallons�
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Questions?
	Rate History




